
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 33 SOUTH MAIN STREET, COLFAX, CA 

 

MAYOR JOE FATULA • MAYOR PRO TEM MARNIE MENDOZA 

COUNCILMEMBERS • KIM DOUGLASS • SEAN LOMEN • TRINITY BURRUSS 

 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

February 27, 2019 
Closed Session 6:30 PM   Regular Session 7:00 PM 

 

 Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 
72 hours prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

February 27, 2019 

 
Page 1 of 2  

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER  

1A. Call Closed Session to Order 

1B. Roll Call 

1C. Public Comment on Closed Session Items 

1D. Closed Session 
Conference With Legal Counsel - Existing Litigation Pursuant To Government Code Section 
54956.9(d)(1): People of The State Of California vs Church of Modern Medicine, Placer County 
Superior Court Case # SCV41724. 

 

2. CALL TO ORDER  

2A. Call Open Session to Order 

2B. Report from Closed Session 

2C. Pledge of Allegiance 

2D. Roll Call 

2E. Approval of Agenda Order 
This is the time for changes to the agenda to be considered including removal, postponement, or change to the agenda sequence. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: By motion, accept the agenda as presented or amended. 
 

3. PRESENTATION 

3A. Presentation: Community Wildfire Safety Program Overview 

Brandon Sanders, Sierra Division Public Affairs Pacific Gas and Electric Company 
 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 
Matters on the Consent Agenda are routine in nature and will be approved by one blanket motion with a Council vote. No discussion of these 

items ensues unless specific items are pulled for discussion and separate action.  If you wish to have an item pulled from the Consent Agenda 

for discussion, please notify the Mayor. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Consent Calendar 

4A. Minutes – Regular meeting February 13, 2019 

 Recommendation:  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 13, 2019. 

4B. Cash Summary Report – January 2019 

 Recommendation:  Accept and File. 
4C. Wastewater Treatment Plant Vehicle Purchase 
 Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 04-2019 approving the purchase of one Wastewater 

Treatment Plant vehicle from Winner Chevrolet Fleet Sales in an amount not to exceed $35,000.  

 

 

 



 Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 
72 hours prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

February 27, 2019 

 
Page 2 of 2  

 

4D. Fire Station 37 Roof Repair 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 05-2019 authorizing the City Manager to enter into an 
agreement with Five Star Roofing for installation of a new roof on fire Station 37, in an 
amount not to exceed $13,500. 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Members of the audience are permitted to address the Council on matters of concern to the public within the subject matter jurisdiction of 

the City Council that are not listed on this agenda.  Please make your comments as brief as possible; not to exceed three (3) minutes in length.  

The Council cannot act on items not included on this agenda; however, if action is required it will be referred to staff. 
 

6. COUNCIL, STAFF AND OTHER REPORTS 
The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and issues discussed at committee 

meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be made on these issues. If a member of the Council prefers formal 

action be taken on any committee reports or other information, the issue will be placed on a future Council meeting agenda. 

6A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items - All Councilmembers 

6B. City Operations Update – City staff 

6C. Additional Reports – Agency partners 
 

7. COUNCIL BUSINESS 

7A. Mid-year Budget Review – Fiscal Year 2018-2019 

Staff Presentation:  Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director  

Recommendation:  Receive and accept the Mid-Year Budget Report Fiscal Year 2018-2019. 

7B. Commercial Cannabis Consulting Services 

Staff Presentation:  Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Recommendation:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 06-2019 authorizing the City 

Manager to enter into a consultant services agreement with SCI Consulting Group to 

provide subject matter expertise and technical support, conduct compliance and financial 

audits, and on-going non-compliant mitigation services for the City of Colfax for a three-

year term up to $61,616. 
 

8. GOOD OF THE ORDER - INFORMAL COUNCIL STATEMENTS REGARDING THE 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY 
Informal observation reports and inquiries regarding the business of the City may be presented by Council members under this agenda item 

or requests for placement of items of interest on a future agenda.  No action will be taken. 
 

 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 

I, Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk for the City of Colfax declare that this agenda was posted  

at Colfax City Hall and the Colfax Post Office. The agenda is also available on the City website at www.Colfax-ca.gov.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Administrative Remedies must be exhausted prior to action being initiated in a court of law.  If you challenge City Council action 

in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at a public hearing described in this 

notice/agenda, or in written correspondence delivered to the City Clerk of the City of Colfax at, or prior to, said public hearing. 

 

http://www.colfax-ca.gov/


 

City of Colfax 1 

City Council Minutes February 13, 2019 
 

6A.      City of Colfax 
    City Council Minutes 
    Regular Meeting of Wednesday, February 13, 2019 
    City Hall Council Chambers 
    33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 
 

 

 
 

1 CLOSED SESSION 
1A. Call to Order 

Mayor Fatula called the meeting to order at 6:35PM. 
1B. Roll Call 

Council members present:  Burruss, Douglass, Fatula, Lomen, Mendoza 
1C. Public Comment on Closed Session Item 

There was no public comment on the closed session item. 
1D. Closed Session 

Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation.  Significant exposure to litigation 
pursuant to Government Code Section 5496.9(d)(2):  One potential case 
 

Close session ended at 6:55PM. 
 

2 OPEN SESSION 
2A. Call to Order 

Mayor Fatula called the open session to order at 7:01PM. 
2B. Pledge of Allegiance 

John McCann, Linebacker for the Colfax High School Varsity Football Team, led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

2C. Roll Call 
Council members present:  Burruss, Douglass, Fatula, Lomen, Mendoza 

2D. Approval of Agenda Order 
 

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, seconded by Councilmember Burruss, the City Council 
approved the agenda order. 
AYES:  Burruss, Douglass, Fatula, Lomen, Mendoza 
 

3 PRESENTATIONS 

3A. Presentation to First Responders 
In recognition of Community Outreach Event – December 2018 

Mayor Fatula presented volunteers from the community, Colfax Fire Department, CAL Fire, Placer 
County Sheriff’s Office and American Medical Response with letters of appreciation for the “Santa 
Comes to Colfax” event which was held in December of 2018. 

3B. Presentation to Colfax Football Team 
In recognition of 2018 Northern California Championship 

The Council presented Proclamations to each member of the Colfax High School Varsity Football 
Team and coaches for their outstanding accomplishments as a team. 
 

Mayor Fatula called for a brief recess at 7:15PM. 
The meeting was called back to order at 7:20PM. 
 
 
 

Item 4A
1 of 7



 

City of Colfax 2 

City Council Minutes February 13, 2019 
 

Report from Closed Session 
City Attorney Cabral stated there was no reportable action taken during closed session. 
 

4 CONSENT CALENDAR 
4A. Minutes – Regular Meeting January 23, 2019 

Recommendation:  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 23, 2019. 
4B. Quarterly Investment Report – Quarter ending December 31, 2018 

Recommendation:  Receive and file. 
 

On a motion by Councilmember Burruss, and a second by Councilmember Lomen, the City Council 
approved the Consent Calendar. 
AYES:  Burruss, Douglass, Fatula, Lomen, Mendoza 
 

5 PUBLIC COMMENT 
Steve Harvey, 251 Scholtz Avenue 

• Mr. Harvey recommended Council study the City’s National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) permit for the Wastewater Treatment Plant because the 
plant is the City’s greatest asset and its greatest liability. 

Wendy Dion, Colfax business owner 
• Ms. Dion asked Council to work with the California Highway Patrol and Sheriff’s Office 

to provide better traffic control on City streets when Highway I-80 is closed.  Residents 
need access to public roads. 

Linda Habay, Colfax business owner 
• Ms. Habay also expressed concerns regarding the freeway closures.  Members of the 

public who are stopped at the Colfax exit are often disrespectful of private property and 
cause problems for business owners.  She asked Council to make a plan to deal with 
these incidents. 

Ty Conners, on behalf of Andrea Harris, President of the Green Machine 
• Sergeant Conners invited everyone to the Annual Crab Feed which will be March 23, 

2019 at the Sierra Vista Community Center to raise funds for local events and 
organizations. 

 

6 COUNCIL, STAFF, AND OTHER REPORTS 
6A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items – All Councilmembers 

Councilmember Lomen 
• Councilmember Lomen represented the City at the Placer Fire Safe Council meeting 

and attended the Solid Waste Task Force meeting. 
Councilmember Douglass 

• Councilmember Douglass joined Congressman Doug LaMalfa to hand out awards to 
Acres of Hope participants. 

• He represented the City on the Sacramento Area Council Of Governments (SACOG) 
Board and the Pioneer Energy Board. 

• He attended the Placer County/City Officials Dinner and participated in the 
Communication Workshop and Landfill Use Committee Discussion.   

• He participated in several community events:  Sierra Vista Community Center 
Soccer Fundraiser, VFW Pancake Breakfast and the Chamber of Commerce 
Luncheon. 

 
 

Item 4A
2 of 7



 

City of Colfax 3 

City Council Minutes February 13, 2019 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza 
• Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza attended the Green Machine Spaghetti Feed Fundraiser, 

the Colfax Elementary School service program Valentine’s event, the Chamber 
Luncheon, the California Transportation Commission (CTC) event, and the 
City/County Officials Dinner. 

Councilmember Burruss 
• Councilmember Burruss attended the Diamonds and Denim Crab Feed, the CTC 

event, the City/County Officials Dinner, the VFW Breakfast and the Chamber 
Luncheon. 

• She congratulated Councilmember Douglass for receiving the annual Scoop 
Thurman Award. 

• She participated in the Landfill Use Committee meeting and the Communications 
Workshop. 

• She stated Council will work on solutions for the I-80 Road Closure problems. 
Mayor Fatula 

• Mayor Fatula attended the CTC event and the City/County Officials Dinner. 
• He reported from the Communication Workshop. Reene Abbott has volunteered to 

serve as editor for a pilot program providing an online newsletter to the public. 
• He met with Supervisor Montgomery and discussed potential funding opportunities 

for Colfax projects. 
 

6B. City Operations – City Staff 
City Manager Heathcock 

• City Manager Heathcock reported to Council the code enforcement issue on Ben 
Taylor Road has been cleaned up, in part due to the abatement and fine processes 
put in place by Council.   

• He stated Colfax High School has an emergency services workshop planned in the 
near future.  

• He asked Council to create a subcommittee to initiate a draft Hazardous Vegetation 
Ordinance for improved fire safety in the area.  Councilmembers Burruss and Lomen 
volunteered to be on the committee which will meet on February 21, 2019.  

• City Manager Heathcock reported the Solid Waste Local Task Force discussed the 
unfunded mandate for communities to divert organics to landfill (AB1383).  The City 
should be able to obtain an exception as a Rural Disadvantaged Community. 

• He congratulated Councilmember Douglass on his well-deserved award. 
 

6C. Additional Reports – Agency Partners 
Foxey McCleary and Sharon Conners, Sierra Vista Community Center and Veterans of 

Foreign Wars (VFW) 
• Ms. Conners updated Council on events at the Sierra Vista Community Center. 
• Ms. McCleary reminded everyone of the 2nd Sunday breakfast for the VFW and 

announced 14 artists will be featured at the Chocolate, Wine and Art Indulgence on 
April 27, 2019.  Tickets are $20. 

Frank Klein, Colfax Area Chamber of Commerce President 
• Mr. Klein reported the Chamber honored Councilmember Douglass as the volunteer 

of the year at Annual Chamber Luncheon. 

Item 4A
3 of 7



 

City of Colfax 4 

City Council Minutes February 13, 2019 
 

• The Chamber Board will elect new officers next week and Mr. Klein will be stepping 
down as president. 

• He thanked the Council, staff and agency partners for the opportunity to work with 
them on the Chamber Board over the past 6 years. 

Fred Abbott, Colfax Event Liaison 
• Mr. Abbott reported he is working with the Chocolate, Wine and Art Indulgence 

organizers. 
• He handed out a prototype of the newsletter he and Reene Abbott have developed 

and requested feedback. 
City Manager Heathcock reminded the Abbotts of the need to embed a survey in the online version 
of the newsletter. 
Councilmember Burruss confirmed the City will not be able to authorize funds until after the initial 
feasibility study.   

Chris Nave, Public Information Officer, Gold Run Area California Highway Patrol. 
• Officer Nave introduced Lieutenant Newman who is now heading the Gold Run 

Area CHP office.  Lt. Newman stated he has no simple solutions to the problems 
associated with I-80 road closures, but he is listening and willing to work with 
Caltrans and the Sheriff’s Office to mitigate the problems. 

Mayor Fatula suggested more officers would be available to assist the public if gates are installed 
at on/off ramps along the highway corridor. 
Councilmember Burruss suggested gathering the stakeholders for a brainstorming session. 

Ty Conners, Colfax Substation Commander, Placer County Sheriff’s Office 
• Sergeant Conners gave an update on Sheriff Deputy activities in Colfax. 
• He thanked Homie Joe’s for the donation to the Skatepark. 

Brian Eagan, Colfax Battalion Chief 
• Chief Eagan updated Council on recent activities of the local Cal Fire station. 
• He is excited to work with the new Fire Safety committee to implement a 

Hazardous Vegetation Ordinance. 
Will Stockwin, Trustee, Placer Mosquito and Vector Control District 

• Mr. Stockwin gave a report of recent activities of the Mosquito Control District. 
• He stated rainfall for the season is already two-thirds of last year with 33.9 inches. 

 

7 COUNCIL BUSINESS 
7A. Commercial Cannabis Retail Permit Applications 

Staff Presentation:  Alfred A. “Mick” Cabral, City Attorney 
Recommendation:  Discuss whether the commercial cannabis permit application process 
should resume and provide direction to the City Manager. 
 

City Attorney Cabral stated staff is seeking policy direction. One year ago, Council passed an 
ordinance and subsequent resolutions creating a 4-step process to issue commercial cannabis 
business permits.  The City received applications from four businesses and began the first phase 
of the vetting process.  In August, Council directed staff to stop the application process until further 
direction from Council.  Council has several options.  They may choose not to reopen the permitting 
process, or direct staff to accept one or more applications for medicinal cannabis permits, adult 
use cannabis permits, or both, or neither.    
 

Item 4A
4 of 7



 

City of Colfax 5 

City Council Minutes February 13, 2019 
 

City Manager Heathcock explained the State regulations are changing frequently.  For example, 
cities can no longer prevent cannabis deliveries within their jurisdiction.  Any direction given to 
staff may only be valid in the short term as the State may change regulations again.  
Mayor Fatula mentioned the City has spent about $165,000 since 2015 to create the ordinances 
and process for commercial cannabis business licensing.  He also stated that many people thought 
the Golden State Patient Care (GSPC) business was grandfathered in under the new ordinance, but 
since GSPC has not been in continual operation, it cannot be grandfathered in and must comply 
with the regulations set forth in the current ordinance. 
 

Councilmember Burruss stated we need to be sure the process works before investing more time 
and money.  She mentioned the tax revenues from GSPC are not a significant portion of City 
revenues.   
 

City Manager Heathcock reminded Council the application fees for the permitting process and 
cannabis tax were calculated to pay the costs for administering cannabis business regulations. 
 

Councilmember Burruss stated she would like to hire a different firm to administer the process 
and accept only one application from GSPC.  The City would issue a 12 month permit to GSPC if it 
meets the requirements set forth in the City’s regulations.   She suggested going through the entire 
application on a yearly basis is unfair to the applicant and recommends looking at changing the 
ordinance in the future. 
 

Chad Ingersoll, 12 W. Oak Street, asked why the City needs to hire a firm to process applications 
instead of adding the fee to City revenues. 
 

City Manager Heathcock responded staff does not have the expertise or time in-house to evaluate 
permit applications. 
 

Councilmember Burruss stated the review from an outside firm mitigates the risk to the City.   
 

Mr. Ingersoll asked if other cities use outside firms for processing cannabis business applications 
and if the State will help with the process. 
 

City Manager Heathcock replied several hundred cities, especially those with limited staff 
resources do use an outside firm for this service.  The state does not assist cities in the regulation 
process.  In fact, when an illegal business set up shop in town, the state did nothing to help and the 
City of Colfax had to bear the legal fees to remove them.  Also, state laws are in their infancy and 
are likely to change in the near future. 
 

Councilmember Burruss stated hiring the firm also minimizes the risk to council members 
personally as they are liable for allowing a business retailing a substance on the Federal Schedule 
1 List of Controlled Substances. 
 

Steve Harvey, 251 Scholtz Avenue, reminded Council the regulations for cannabis are too 
complicated for the City to administer directly and hiring a firm should reduce the likelihood of 
the federal government seeking a claim against the City.  He also stated the result of allowing 
cannabis businesses is an illegal business coming to Colfax and the District Attorney will no longer 
be willing to help the City.   
 

Jim Dion, owner of GSPC, stated a bill is being presented to Congress to remove marijuana from 
the Schedule 1 list. 
 

Will Stockwin, 525 Pine Street, asserted 30 states have legalized cannabis and he doesn’t feel 
Colfax needs to worry about the federal government bringing a claim against the City.  He approves 

Item 4A
5 of 7



 

City of Colfax 6 

City Council Minutes February 13, 2019 
 

of the idea of allowing one business, GSPC.  More businesses could be added later after ascertaining 
the process works with one business.  He feels there is more revenue available for the City if 
Council allows commercial growing and or manufacture of cannabis in the future. 
Councilmember Burruss stated she would like to see the ordinance expanded to allow a 
microbusiness that grows and manufactures its own product locally.  Clients would know where 
the product comes from. 
 

Mayor Fatula called a recess at 9:12PM and reopened the meeting at 9:22PM. 
 

Tim Ryan, 300 S. Main Street, asked if allowing only one permit would set a precedent for other 
types of businesses. 
 

City Attorney Cabral stated decisions regarding cannabis would not transfer to other businesses. 
Councilmember Burruss added that other businesses are not regulated in the same way because 
they are not Schedule 1 substances. 
 

On a motion by Mayor Fatula, seconded by Council Member Douglass and passed unanimously, 
staff was directed as follows: (1) Staff shall resume the commercial cannabis application process 
by accepting one application for a medicinal cannabis permit and no others without further 
direction from the Council. (2) Golden State Patient Care shall be allowed to submit the only 
application for a medicinal cannabis permit at this time. (3) Since there will be only one 
application, staff will implement only Phase 1 of the required application process.  If Golden State 
Patient Care successfully qualifies during the Phase 1 application process, its annual permit shall 
be submitted to the Council for approval. (4) Any medicinal cannabis permit issued to Golden State 
Patient Care shall expire one year after it is issued, unless it is renewed or revoked as allowed by 
Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 5.32, shall be for medicinal cannabis only, and shall be valid only 
for Golden State Patient Care’s current location. (5) Golden State Patient Care’s temporary 
business license shall remain valid until it is issued, or fails to qualify for, a medicinal cannabis 
license under Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 5.32, whichever is earlier. 
AYES:  Burruss, Douglass, Fatula, Lomen, Mendoza 
 

City Manager Heathcock stated that staff will look into engaging another company to administer 
the application process and will need to bring a contract back to Council for approval.  The GSPC 
temporary license will continue throughout the application review process.  Initiating the review 
process may take upwards of six weeks.  The 12-month permit will be issued after Council 
approves the application of GSPC. 
 

7B. Sewer Collection System and Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements Planning 
Grant – Environmental Review Agreement with Adrienne L. Graham, AICP 
Staff Presentation:  Wes Heathcock, City Manager  
Recommendation:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 03-2019 authorizing the City 
Manager to enter into an agreement with Adrienne L. Graham, AICP for the environmental 
review component of the Planning Grant for Sewer Collection System and Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Improvements in an amount not to exceed $63,822 contingent upon 
approval of the Regional Water Quality Control board grant funding. 
 

City Manager Heathcock stated Ms. Graham is in the audience and available to answer questions 
Council may have regarding this agreement.  The agreement is in association with the grant 
application Council authorized for Sewer Collection System and Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Improvements.  Since the grant involves federal monies, an environmental review is required.  Ms. 
Graham was recommended by the engineer and she has much experience with these types of 

Item 4A
6 of 7



 

City of Colfax 7 

City Council Minutes February 13, 2019 
 

reviews.  The agreement includes a 10% contingency and will not be in effect until the grant is 
approved.  Expenses will be reimbursable through the grant funds.   
 
Mayor Fatula reiterated there will be no out of pocket expenses for this contract. 
 

There was no public comment. 
 

On a motion by Councilmember Burruss and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza Council 
approved Resolution 03-2019. 
AYES:  Burruss, Douglass, Fatula, Lomen, Mendoza 
  

8 GOOD OF THE ORDER – INFORMAL COUNCIL STATEMENTS REGARDING THE 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY 
 

Councilmember Burruss requested a follow-up to the Communication Workshop before the 
publishing date of the newsletter.  City Manager Heathcock will look at the schedule and set a date. 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza would like to schedule a presentation to Council from the Chinese 
Railroad Workers Memorial group. 
 

Councilmember Douglass asked to discuss increasing pavement improvement funding in the 
budget.  He wants to keep road issues and economic development on the front burner.  City 
Manager Heathcock stated a discussion of funding is planned during the Fiscal Year Budget review 
which begins in May.   
 

Councilmember Burruss reminded everyone that if they see something illegal, they should report 
it so that it goes on the record. 
She suggested businesses sign up for the Eagle Eye Program which links closed circuit monitors to 
the police data base. 
 

Mayor Fatula stated Supervisor Montgomery would like a map showing the state of the roads.  City 
Manager Heathcock stated staff may be able to superimpose data from the Pavement Management 
Plan over a map. 
 

9 ADJOURNMENT 
 

Mayor Fatula adjourned the meeting at 9:50PM. 
 

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 27th day of February, 2019. 
 

Item 4A
7 of 7



 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE FEBRUARY 27, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE: February 11, 2019 
SUBJECT: Cash Summary Report - January 2019 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and file. 
 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:  
 

These monthly financial reports include General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs and the City of Colfax Cash 
Summary Report (with supporting documentation).  The reports are prepared monthly on a cash basis and are 
reconciled to the General Ledger accounting system, previous reports, and bank statements.  Detailed budget 
comparisons are provided as a mid-year report and also as part of the proposed budget process each year. 
 

The purpose of the reports is to provide status of funds and transparency for Council and the public of the 
financial transactions of the City. 
 

The attached reports reflect an overview of the financial transactions of the City of Colfax in  
January 2019.  Monthly highlights include: 

• Revenues for January included the first allocation for FY2018-2019 property taxes and delinquent sewer 
charges placed on the annual tax roll.  The first allocation is 55% of total for the fiscal year.  The second 
allocation of 45% is scheduled to be processed in May and the final 5% allocation is generally processed 
by August of each year. 

• Expenses for January included the following (in addition to normal monthly operations and ongoing 
project costs): 

o Quarterly (2) Fire Support contract - $15,000 

• Negative cash fund balances are due to timing of funding allocations and reimbursements.   
o Fund 250 – To be funded by Streets & Roads monies through Placer County Transportation 

Agency (PCTPA) and budgeted fund transfers (funds 100/253).  We received first allocation of 
funding from PCTPA in December and second allocation is expected by March. Full funding of 
budgeted transfers from Gas Tax Fund and General Fund are expected in latter part of fiscal 
year. 

o Capital Projects – All expenditures are anticipated to be reimbursed by grant funds, developer 
fees, Special Revenue funds, and fund transfers as budgeted. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1.  General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs 2.  Cash Activity Reports 

a. Cash Analysis – Balance       a. Cash Summary 
b. Expenses by Month b. Cash Transactions Report – by individual fund 
c. Revenues by Month       c. Check Register Report - Accounts Payable 

       d. Daily Cash Summary Report (Cash Receipts) 
 
 

Item 4B
1 of 11



Item 4B
2 of 11



Item 4B
3 of 11



Item 4B
4 of 11



Item 4B
5 of 11



Item 4B
6 of 11



Item 4B
7 of 11



Item 4B
8 of 11



Item 4B
9 of 11



Item 4B
10 of 11



Item 4B
11 of 11



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE FEBRUARY 27, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Chris J. Clardy, Community Services Director 

DATE: February 12, 2019 
SUBJECT: Wastewater Treatment Plant Vehicle Purchase 

 

 N/A  X FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: $35,000 
FROM FUND: 560-000 and 
561-000  

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 04-2019 approving the purchase of one Wastewater 
Treatment Plant vehicle from Winner Chevrolet Fleet Sales in an amount not to exceed $35,000. 

 
DISCUSSION AND SUMMARY: 
 
In anticipation of vehicle replacement needs of the departments, staff proposed the purchase of new 
vehicles in the 2017/18 fiscal budget year.  Council approved two vehicle capital expenditures with the 
adoption of the budget in June of 2017.  These purchases were rolled over into the 2018/2019 FY Budget. 
 
The vehicle to be replaced is the 2000 Chevrolet 1500 4x4 ½-ton at the wastewater treatment plant. The 
vehicle is almost 20 years old and has depreciated beyond its useful life. By applying fleet best practices, we 
find the maintenance and repair costs to retain the vehicle based on its value will most likely be exceeded 
in the near future. The goal is to replace it with a more suitable truck, a Chevrolet 2500 ¾-ton long bed 4x4 
equipped with the 6.0L V8. The heavy-duty application provides for more effective towing capacity needed 
for the department’s heavier equipment in our mountainous community.  
 
Staff solicited quotes from three vendors for competitive government bids.  The cost breakdown based on 
the requested model and specifications are as follows: 
 

Contractor Total Cost Comments 

Winner Chevrolet Fleet Sales $29,285.75 Plus tax, Includes 5yr warranty 

Downtown Ford Fleet Sales $38,539.22 Out the door, Includes 5yr warranty  

Dodge Fleet Sales $39,122.00 Plus Tax, License and DOC Fees. No Extended Warranty 

 
Based on the cost, return of tax dollars for buying locally, and convenience of maintenance, staff 
recommends Council approve the purchase through Winner Chevrolet Fleet Sales not to exceed $35,000 
which includes a 10% contingency.  
 
 

Item 4C
1 of 26



 

 

FINANCIAL AND/OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
The vehicle purchase will be funded from the capital expenditures sewer funds, line items 560-000 and 
561-000 approved in the Fiscal Year Budget 2017/18.  The total budget for the item was $45,000 during this 
year; therefore, the vehicle purchase is under the estimated budget.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution 04-2019 
2. Proposals 
3. Extended Warranty 

 

Item 4C
2 of 26



Resolution 04-2019 – Wastewater Vehicle Purchase Page 1 
 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 04-2019 
 

APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF A WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 
VEHICLE FROM WINNER CHEVROLET FLEET SALES IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 

EXCEED $35,000 

 

WHEREAS, the Public Works and Wastewater Treatment Plant vehicles have aged 
to a point that they are depreciated and becoming less dependable; and, 

 
WHEREAS, at the June 14, 2017, City Council approved the purchase of two Public 

Works and Wastewater Treatment Plant vehicles in the 2017/18 budget; and,  
 

WHEREAS, City staff consulted Winner Chevrolet Fleet, Downtown Ford Fleet, and 
Dodge Fleet competitive government bids; and, 

 
WHEREAS, City staff is recommending approving the purchase from Winner 

Chevrolet Fleet Sales based on the cost, tax revenue return to community, and convenience 
for maintenance. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City Council of the City of Colfax approves 
the purchase of one Wastewater Treatment Plant vehicle from Winner Chevrolet Fleet 
Sales in the amount not to exceed $35,000.  

 
THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at a 

regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 27th day of February, 
2019 by the following vote of the Council: 
 
AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   

                                                                 
___________________________________ 

       Joe Fatula, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 

Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

Item 4C
3 of 26



Elk Grove Auto/ Winner Chevrolet 
8575 Laguna Grove Drive 
Elk Grove, CA 95757 
916-426-5752 

To: 

DATE February 1, 2019 

Quotation # 20920 
City of Colfax 

Prepared by: Tim Bobzien 
(916) 123-1234

Comments or special Instructions: Vehicle build and options are in additional pages. 
State Contract # 1-18-23-20D 

Description 

Line 23 Silverado 

Options (Refer to Window Sticker): 

Upgrade to 8' Long Bed 

DOC Fee 

- Please review, sign, and return a copy of the quote and .... 

- specs with the PO or the vehicle will not be ordered ..... 

--shipping charge added for deliveries beyond Sacramento. No charge for will call.* .... 

Subtotal: 

CA Tire Fee: $1.75/ Per Tire I Tire Fee: 

Delivery Charge: 

Pre Tax Total 

Add CA Sales Tax (Tire Fee and Delivery are NOT to be taxed) 

If you have any questions concerning this quotation, contact Jerry Powers at 916-426-5752 or 
email at JPowers@LasherAuto.com 

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS! 

AMOUNT 

$ 27,592.00 

$ 1,200.00 

$ 400.00 

$ 85.00 

, 

$ 29,277.00 

$ -

$8.75 

$ 29,285.75 

Item 4C
4 of 26



■ Winner Chevrolet/ Elk Grove Auto Group
Jerry Powers I 916-426-5752 I JPowers@LasherAuto.com

L ;11e� 25 1c1Ae,k'

\-\S-.23-2-0D 

[Fleet] 2019 Chevrolet Silverado 2500HD (CK25953) 4WD Double Cab 158.1" (12) 

---=-=:� __ /-\ 

:=---•_-.. �.-. ·;;;•� .•. --.....,--,.,_- -_--·-
�-- - ""i Iii i-�----411·, ;� ' _ __:__, ,.-1

',. :I 
'►.••: I 

- �-- --._,,., tj' .l_ 
;.:,)' 

In an effort to offal' your agency \ti! best possible pike, 
this quote Is baSed pn the Ca. Slat! Contract at no 

addlti�l cost to you and renects yolll' speclncatlo� 

Item 4C
5 of 26



■ Winner Chevrolet/ Elk Grove Auto Group
Jerry Powers I 916-426-5752 I JPowers@LasherAuto.com

[Fleet] 2019 Chevrolet Silverado 2500HD (CK25953) 4WD Double Cab 158.1" (12) 

Price Summary 

PRICE SUMMARY 

Base Price 

Total Options 

Vehicle Subtotal 

Dealer Advertising Adjustment 

Destination Charge 

Grand Total 

Invoice 

$38,151.00 

$1,051.05 

$39,202.05 

$0.00 

$1,495.00 

$40,697.05 

MSRP 

$40,500.00 

$1,155.00 

$41,655.00 

S0.00 

$1,495.00 

$43,150.00 

This document contains lnforma0on considered Conftdentlal between GM and Its Clients uniquely. The mformaUon provided Is not Intended for public disclosure. Prices, 
specifications, and avallablhty are subject to change wilhout notice, and do not Include certain fees, taxes and charges thal may be required by law or vary by manufacturer or region. 
Performance figures 111111 guidelines only, and actual pelformance may vary. Photos may not represent actual vahicl111 or exael canfiguratons. Content based on report preparer's 
Input Is subject to the accuracy of the Input provided. 
Data Version; 7565. Oata Updated; Jan 31, 2019 9:59:00 PM PST. 

Feb 1, 2019 Page4 

-
Item 4C

6 of 26



■ Winner Chevrolet/ Elk Grove Auto Group
Jerry Powers I 916-426-5752 I JPowers@LasherAuto.com

[Fleet] 2019 Chevrolet S1lverado 2500HD (CK25953) 4WD Double Cab 158.1" (12) 

Window Sticker 

SUMMARY 

[Fleet] 2019 Chevrolet Silverado 2500HD (CK25953) 4WD Doub!e Cab 158.1" Work Truck 

lnterior:Dark Ash with Jet Black Interior Accents, Vinyl seat trim 

Exterior 1 :Summit White 

Exterior 2:No color has been selected. 

Engine, Vortec 6.0L Variable Valve Timing VS SFI, E85-compatible, FlexFuel 

Transmission, 6-speed automatic, heavy-duty, electronically controlled 

OPTIONS 

CODE 

CK25953 

1WT 

A91 

AE7 

AKO 

AOQ 

DO8 

DPN 

E63 

GAZ 

GT5 

H2Q 

108 

JL1 

Kl4 

L96 

MODEL 

[Fleet] 2019 Chevrolet Silverado 2500HO (CK25953) 4WD Double 
Cab 158.1" Work Truck 

OPTIONS 

Work Truck Preferred Equipment Group 

Remote Locking Tailgate 

Seats, front 40/20/40 split-bench, 3-passenger, driver and front 
passenger recline 

Glass, deep-tinted 

Remote Keyless Entry 

Mirror, inside rearview auto-dimming 

Mirrors, outside heated power-adjustable vertical trailering, upper 
glass, manual-folding and extending, Black; 

Pickup box 

Summit White 

Rear axle, 4.10 ratio 

Dark Ash with Jet Black Interior Accents, Vinyl seat trim 

Audio system, Chevrolet Infotainment System with 7" diagonal color 
touch-screen, AM/FM stereo 

Trailer brake controller, integrated 

Power outlet, 110-volt AC 

Engine, Vortec 6.0L Variable Valve Timing VS SFI, E85-compatible, 
FlexFuel 

Inc. 

Inc. 

Inc. 

tnc. 

Inc. 

Inc. 

MSRP:$40,500.00 

MSRP 

$40,500.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

This document contains Information considered Confidential between GM and its Clients uniquely. The lnformallon provided Is nol intended for pubUc dlsclosure. Prices, 
specificaUons, and availabihty are subject lo change without nollca, and do not Inell.Ide cenaln fees, lalles and charges lllat may be required by law m vary by manufacturer or region. 
Performanc:e figures are guidelines only, and actual performance may vary Pho10, may not represent actual vahides or exact conf,gurations. Content based on report pieparer's 
Input Is subject 10 the accuracy of the Input provided. 
Data Venlon: 7565. Data Updated: Jan 31, 2019 9:59:00 PM PST. 

Feb 1, 2019 Pages 

., 

Item 4C
7 of 26



■ Winner Chevrolet/ Elk Grove Auto Group
Jerry Powers I 916--426-5752 I JPowers@LasherAuto.com

MYD 

NZ4 

PYN 

R9Y 

VK3 

V02 

YF5 

2Y1 

FUEL ECONOMY 

Est City:N/A 

Est Highway:N/A 

[Fleet] 2019 Chevrolet Sllverado 2500HD (CK25953) 4WD Double Cab 158.1 � (12) 

Transmission, 6-speed automatic,. heavy-duty. electronically 
controlled 

Wheels. 17" x 7.5" (43.2 cm x 19.1 cm) full-size, steel spare. 

WT Fleet Convenience Package (Double Cab and Regular Cab only) 

Wheels, 17" (43.2 cm) steel 

Tires, L T265/70R17E alli-terrain. blackwall 

Fleet Free Maintenance Credit. 

License plate kit, front 

Fleet processing option 

Emissions, California state requirements 

Paint, solid 

SUBTOTAL 

Adjustments Total 

Destination Charge 

TOTAL PRICE 

Est Highway Cruising Range:N/A 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

Ciiii.oo 

-,S-46.00) 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$41,655.00 

$0.00 

$1,495.00 

$43,150.00 

This document contains lnfonnation conslde;ed Confidential between GM and IIS Clients uniquely. The lnfonnatlon provided Is not Intended for public dlsclosura, Prices. 
specifications, and availability ant subject to change without notlce, and do not rnelude certain fees, taxes and charges that may be required by law or vary by manufacturer or 11lgion. 
Performance f,gures are guidelines only, and adual performance may vary Photos may not represent actual vehldes or exact conr,gurations. Content based on report preparer's 
lnpyt Is subject to the accuracy of the Input provided. 
Dal.a Version: 7565. Data Updated: Jan 31, 2019 9 59 00 PM PST. 

Feb 1, 2019 Page6 

-I

$1,000.00 

Item 4C
8 of 26



■ Winner Chevrolet I Elk Grove Auto Group
Jerry Powers I 916-426-5752 I JPowers@LasherAuto.com

[Fleet] 2019 Chevrolet s·Iverado 2500HD (CK25953) 4WD Double Cab 158.1" (12) 

Weight Ratings 

WEIGHT RA TINGS 

Front Gross Axle Weight Rating; 

Rear Gross Axle Weight Rating: 

Gross Vehicle Weight Rating: 

Selected Model and Options 
MODEL 

CODE 

CK25953 

COLORS 

CODE 

GAZ 

MODEL 

2019 Chevrolet Silverado 2500HD 4WD Double Cab 158.1" Work Truck 

DESCRIPTION 

Summit White 

PREFERRED EQUIPMENT GROUP 

CODE 

1WT 

DESCRIPTION 

Work Tr..ick Preferred Equipment Group includes standard equipment 

4800Ibs 

62001bs 

9500.00 lbs 

Invoice 

$38,151.00 

Invoice 

$0.00 

Invoice 

$0.00 

MSRP 

$40,500.00 

MSRP 

SO.OD 

MSRP 

$0.00 

Thl5 document contains infonnation considered Conflc!entlal between GM and lts Clients uniquely. The Information provided is not intended for publle disclosure. Prices, 
specifications. and availability are subject to change without notice, and do not lnclude certain fees, taxe5 and charges that may be required by law or vary by manufacturer or region. 
Performance figures are guidelines only, and actual perfonnance may vary Photos may not repre,ent actual vehides or exact configurations Content based on report preparer's 
Input Js subject to the accuracy or the Input provided. 
Data Version: 7565. Data Updated: Jan 31, 2019 9:59:00 PM PST. 

Feb 1, 2019 Page7 

Item 4C
9 of 26



■ Winner Chevrolet/ Elk Grove Auto Group
Jerry Powers I 916-426-5752 I JPowers@LasherAuto.com

(Fleet] 2019 Chevrolet Sllverado 2500HD (CK25953) 4WD Double Cab 158.1" (12) 

ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT - EXTERIOR 

CODE DESCRIPTION 

A91 Remote Locking Tailgate (Included and only avallable with (AQQ) Remote Keyless Entry.) Inc. 

AKO Glass, deep-tinted (Included with (PCN) Sllverado HD Custom or (PCM) WT Fleet Inc. 
Convenience Package (Double Cab and Regular Cab).) 

DPN Mirrors, outside heated power-adjustable vertical trailering, upper glass, manual-folding Inc. 
and extending, Black; Includes integrated tum signal indicators consisting of 51 square 
inch flat mirror surface positioned over a 24.5 square Inch convex mirror surface with a 
common head and lower convex spotter glass (convex glass is not heated and not power 
adjustable) and addit10n of auxiliary cargo lamp for backing up (helps to see trailer when 
backing up with a trailer) and amber auxiliary clearance lamp (Included and only available 
on Double Cab or Regular Cab models with (PCM} WT Fleet Convenience Package 
(Double Cab and Regular Cab) or (PCN) Sllverado HD Custom. Includes (DO8) auto• 
dimming inside rearview mirror. Available as a free flow option on Crew Cab models with 
(PCR) WT Fleet Convenience Package (Crew Cab) or (PCN) Silverado HD Custom. 
Required when (ANO) Alaskan Snow Plow Package and (PCM) WT Fleet Convenience 
Package (Double Cab and Regular Cab) or (PCR) WT Fteet Convenience Package (Crew 
Cab} are ordered together.) 

NZ4 Wheels, 17" x 7 .5" (43.2 cm x 19.1 cm) full-size. steel spare. (Requires 17" wheels and 
tires.) 

VK3 Ucense plate kit, front 

ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT· INTERJOR 

CODE DESCRIPTION 

AQQ Remote Keyless Entry (Included and only ava:lable with (PCM) WT fleet Convenience r.nc.

Package (Double Cab and Regular Cab), (PCR) WT Fleet Convenience Package (Crew 
Cab) or (PCN) Silverado HD Custom. Includes (A91) remote locking tailgate.) 

DOB Mirror, inside rearview auto-dimming (Included and only available with (DPN) outside lne-. 
heated power-adjustable vertical trailering mirrors.) 

Kl4 Power outlet, 110-volt AC (Included with (PCN) Silverado HD Custom or (PCM) WT Aeet Inc. 
Convenience Package (Double Cab and Regular Cab),) 

ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT - MECHANICAL 

CODE DESCRIPTION 

JL1 Trailer brake controller, integrated {Standard on Double Cab models. Standard on 
Regular Cab models with a pickup box. Included with (PCN} Sdverado HD Custom on 
Crew Cab models. Wrth (E63) pickup box, requires avaitabte (ZB2) trailering equipment. 
Available to order as a free flow option on Crew Cab or Regular Cab models with (ZW9) 
pickup box delete or (9J4) rear bumper delete.) 

Invoice MSRP 

Inc. 

Inc. 

Inc. 

$0.00 $0.00 

$0.00 $0.00 

Invoice MSRP 

Inc. 

Inc. 

Inc. 

Invoice MSRP 

$0.00 $0.00 

This document conlai11$ informatlon considered Confidential between GM and Its Clients uniquety. The lnfonnallon provided Is not intended for public disclosure. Pnces, 
specirtcations, and availability ant subject to change without noUce, and do not Include certain fees. taxes and charges that may be ruqulred by law or vary by manufacturer or region. 
Performance figures are guidelines only, and ae1Ual performance may vary. Photos may not represent actual whicles or exact configurations Cantllnt based on report preparer'■ 
Input Is subject to the accuracy of the Input provided. 
Data Version; 7565. Data Updated: Jan 31, 2019 9 59:00 PM PST. 

Feb 1, 2019 PageB 

Item 4C
10 of 26



■ -

Winner Chevrolet / Elk Grove Auto Group 
Jerry Powers I 916-426-5752 I JPowers@LasherAuto.com 

[Fleet) 2019 Chevrolet Silverado 2500HO (CK25953) 4WO Double Cab 158.1• (12) 

ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT - PACKAGE 

CODE DESCRIPTION 

PCM WT Fleet Convenience Package (Double Cab and Regular Cab only) includes (AKO) 
tinted windows, (KI4) 11 0V outlet, (AQQ) Remote Keyless Entry and (A91) remote locking 
tailgate. Double Cab and Regular Cab Includes (DPN) outside heated power-adjustable 
vertical trailering mirrors. Crew Cab Includes (DLB) outside, heated power-adjustable 
mirrors. (If (ZW9) pickup box delete Is ordered (A91) remote locking tailgate will not be 
included.) 

ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT - OTHER 

CODE 

R9Y 

VQ2 

SEAT TYPE 

CODE 

AE7 

BODY CODE 

CODE 

E63 

PAINT 

CODE 

GAZ 

AXLE 

CODE 

GT5 

DESCRIPTION 

Fleet Free Maintenance Credit. This option code provides a credit in lieu of the free oil 
changes, tire rotations and Inspections for one maintenance service during 1st year of 
ownership. The invoice will detail the applicable credit. The customerwlll be responsible 
for all oil change, tire rotations and Inspections costs for this vehicle. (Requires one of the 
following Fleet or Government order types: FBC, FBN, FCA, FCN, FEF, FLS, FNR, FRC 
or FGO. Not availab e wlth FDR order type.) •CREDIT• 

Fleet processing option 

DESCRIPTION 

Seats, front 40/20140 split-bench, 3-passenger, driver and front passenger recline with 
outboard head restraints and center fold-down armrest with storage. Vinyl has fixed 
lumbar and cloth has manually adjustable driver lumbar. (STD) (Upgradeable to (AZ3) 
front 40/20/40 split-bench seat) 

DESCRIPTION 

Pickup box (STD) 

DESCRIPTION 

Summit White 

DESCRIPTION 

Rear axle, 4.10 ratio (Requires (L96) Vortec 6.DL V8 SFt engine or (LCB) 6.0L VB SFI 
Gaseous CNG/LPG capable engine.) 

Invoice 

$910.00 

Invoice 

($40.95) 

$0.00 

Invoice 

$0.00 

Invoice 

$0.00 

Invoice 

$0.00 

Invoice 

$0.00 

MSRP 

$1,000.00 

MSRP 

($45.00} 

$0.00 

MSRP 

$0 00 

MSRP 

$0,00 

MSRP 

$0.00 

MSRP 

$0.00 

This document contains lnfonnaUon considered Confidential between GM and Its Clients uniquely. The Information provided Is not Intended fer public dlsdosure. Prices. 
specillcatlons, end ava!lablllty are subject to change without notice. and do not Include certain fees, taxes and charges that may be required by law or vary by manufacturer or region. 
Performance figures are guidelines only, and actual perfonnance may vary. Photos may not represent actual vehicles or exact configurations. Content based on ieport preparer'a 
Input Is subject to the accuracy of the Input provided. 
Data Version: 7565 Data Updaled: Jan 31, 2019 9:59 00 PM PST. 

Feb 1,2019 Pege9 

.. 

.:, 

Item 4C
11 of 26



■ 
SEAT TRIM 

CODE 

H2Q 

RADIO 

CODE 

10B 

ENGINE 

CODE 

L96 

Winner Chevrolet/ Elk Grove Auto Group 
Jerry Powers I 916-426-5752 I JPowers@LasherAuto.com 

[Fleet] 2019 Chevrolet Silverado 2500HD (CK25953) 4WD Double Cab 158.1" ( 12) 

DESCRIPTION 

Dark Ash with Jet Black Interior Accents, Vinyl seat trim 

DESCRIPTION 

Audio system, Chevrolet Infotainment System with 7" diagonal color touch-screen, 
AM/FM stereo with seek-and-scan and digital clock, includes Bluetooth streaming audio 
for music and select phones. (STD) 

DESCRIPTION 

Engine, Vortec 6.0L Variable Valve Timing VB SFI, E85-compatible, FlexFuel capable of 
running on unleaded or up to 85% ethanol (360 hp (268.4 kW] @ 5400 rpm, 380 lb-ft of 
torque (515.0 N-m]@4200 rpm) (STD) 

TRANSMISSION 

CODE 

MYD 

WHEELS 

CODE 

PYN 

TIRES 

CODE 

QXT 

EMISSIONS 

CODE 

YF5 

DESCRIPTION 

Transmission, 6-speed automatic, heavy-duty, electronically controlled with overdrive and 
tow/haul mode. Includes Cruise Grade Braking and Powertrain Grade Braking (STD) 
(Requires (L96) Vortec 6.0L VB SFI engine or (LCB) 6.0L VB SFI Gaseous CNG/LPG 
capable engine.) 

DESCRIPTION 

Wheels, 17" (43.2 cm) steel includes 17" x 7.5" (43.2 cm x 19. 1 cm) steel spare wheat 
(STD) 

DESCRIPTION 

Tires, L T265/70R17E all•terrain, b'lackwall 

DESCRIPTION 

Emissions, California state requirements 

Invoice 

$0.00 

Invoice 

$0.00 

Invoice 

$0.00 

Invoice 

$0.00 

Invoice 

$0.00 

Invoice 

$182.00 

Invoice 

$0.00 

MSRP 

$0.00 

MSRP 

$0.00 

MSRP 

$0.00 

MSRP 

$0.00 

MSRP 

$0.00 

MSRP 

$200.00 

MSRP 

$0.00 

This document conta 'ns lnfonnatlon considered Confidential between GM and Its Clients uniquely. The lnfonnaUon provided is not Intended for public disclosure. Prices, 
spedftcaUOns, and avallal>Ulty are subject to change wltllOut notice, and do not Include certain fees. taxes and charges that may be required by law DI' vary by manufacturer or region. 
Performance figures are guidelines only, and actual perfonnance may vary. Photos may not represent actual whides or exact conr.gurations. Content based on report preparer'• 
input Is subject to the accuracy of Ille Input provided 
Dela Version; 7565. Data Updated: Jan 31, 2019 9 59.00 PM PST, 

Feb 1, 2019 Page 10 

< . 

Item 4C
12 of 26



■ Winner Chevrolet I Elk Grove Auto Group
Jerry Powers I 916-426-5752 I JPowers@LasherAuto.com

[Fleet} 2019 Chevrolet S,ilverado 2500HD (CK25953) 4WD Double Cab 158.1-(12) 

PAINT SCHEME 

CODE 

ZV1 

DESCRIPTION 

Paint. solid 

Options Total 

Invoice 

$0.00 

$1,051.05 

MSRP 

$0.00 

$1,155.00 

Standard Equipment 

Meehan lea I 

Engine, Vortec 6.0L Variable Valve Timing VS SFJ, E85-compatlble, FlexFuel capable of running on unleaded or 
up to 85% ethanol (360 hp [268.4 kW] @5400 rpm, 380 lb-ft of torque [515.0 N-mJ@4200 rpm) (Does not 
include EB5 capability with (ZW9) ptckup box delete.) (STD) 

Transmission, S.speed automatic, heavy-duty, electronically controlled with overdrive and tow/haul mode. 
Includes Cruise Grade Braking and Powertrain Grade Braking (STD) (Requires (L96) Vortec 6.0L VB SFI engine 
or (LCB) 6.0L VB SFI Gaseous CNG/LPG capable engfne.) 

Pickup box (STD} 

GVWR, 9500 lbs. (4309 kg) (Requires CK25903 model, (L96) Vortec 6 0L VB SFI engine or (LCB) 6.0L VB SFI 
Gaseous CNG/LPG capable engine. Not available with CK25943.) 

Rear axle, 4.10 ratio (Requires (L96) Vortec 6.0L VB SFI engine or (LCB) 6.0L VB SFI Gaseous CNG/LPG 
capable engfne.) 

Air cleaner, high-capacity 

Transfer case, with floor-mounted shifter (Included with 4WO models only.) 

Differential, heavy-duly locking rear 

Four wheel drive 

CooJfng, external engine oil coo1er 

Cooling, auxiliary extemal transmission oil cooler 

Battery, heavy-duty 720 cold-cranking amps/BO Amp-hr, maintenance-free with rundown protection and retained 
accessory power 

Alternator, 150 amps 

Trailer brake controller, integrated 

Frame, fully-boxed, hydroformed front section 

Recovery hooks, front, frame-mounted, black 

Trailering equipment Trailering hitch platform 2.5" with a 2.0- Insert for HD, 7-wire harness with independent 
fused trailering circuits mated to a 7-way sealed connector to hook up parking lamps, backup lamps, right and 
left tum signals, an electric brake lead, battery and a ground, The trailer connector also includes the 4-way for 
use on trailers without brakes - park, brake/tum lamps (Standard on Double Cab or Regular Cab models with a 
pickup box Included with (PCN) Silverado HD Custom on Crew Cab models. Not available with (ZW9) pickup 
box delete or (9J4) rear bumper delete.) 

This document conlalns lnfonnation considered Confidential between GM and Its Clients uniquely. The lnformatlon provided Is nol lnlended for public disclosure. Prices, 
spec:lftcations. and availability are subject to change without notice, and do not lnciude certain fees, laxes and charges that may be required by law or vary by manufacturer or ragion. 
Performance figures are guidelines only, and actual performance may vary. Photos may not represent actual vehides or exact configurations Cc>ntent based on rapon preparers 
input Is subject to the accuracy or tne Input provided. 
Data Version: 7565. Data Updated: Jan 31, 2019 9:59:00 PM PST. 

Feb 1, 2019 Page 11 

Item 4C
13 of 26



■ 
Mechanical 

Exterior 

Winner Chevrolet/ Elk Grove Auto Group 
Jerry Powers I 916-426-5752 I JPowers@LasherAuto.com 

[Fleet] 2019 Chevrolet Silverado 2500HD (CK25953) 4WD Double Cab 158.1" (12) 

Suspension Package, Standard includes 51 mm twin tube shock absorbers and 33mm front stabilizer bar 

Steering, Recirculating Ball with smart flow power steering system 

Brakes, 4-wheel antilock, 4-wheel disc with DuraLife brake rotors 

Capless Fuel Fill (Gas engine only. Not available with (ZW9} pickup box delete.) 

Exhaust, aluminized stainless-steel muffler and tailpipe 

Wheels, 17" (43.2 cm) steel includes 17" x 7.5" (43.2 cm x 19.1 cm) steel spare wheel. Spare not included with 
(ZW9} pickup box delete unless a spare tire is ordered (STD) 

Tires, L T245l75R 17E all-season, blackwall (STD) 

Tire carrier lock keyed cylinder lock that utilizes same key as ignition and door (Not included when (ZW9) pickup 
box delete or (9J4) rear bumper delete is ordered.) 

Bumper, front chrome 

ComerStep, rear bumper (Requires (E63) pickup box.) 

Bumper, rear chrome with bumper ComerSteps (Requires (E63) pickup box.) 

Grille, chrome with chrome mesh Inserts 

Grille surround, chrome 

Headl1amps, halogen projector-beam 

Lamps, cargo area, cab mounted with switch on center switch bank 

Mirrors, outside high-visibility vertical trailering, Black with manual folding and extension and lower convex 
spotter glass (Standard on Double Cab or Regular Cab models. Included on Crew Cab models with (ANO) 
Alaskan Snow Plow Special Edillon. Not available with (PCM) WT Fleet Convenience Package (Double Cab and 
Regular Cab).} 

Glass, solar absorbing, tinted 

Door handles, Black 

Ta !gate and bed rail protection caps, lop 

Tailgate, locking, utilizes same key as ignition and door (Not available with (AQQ) Remote Keyless Entry.) 

Tailgate, EZ-Uft and Lower (Standard and only available on Double Cab models. Deleted when (ZW9) pickup 
box delete is ordered.) 

Entertainment 

Audio system, Chevrolet Infotainment System with 7" diagonal color touch-screen, AM/FM stereo with seek•and
scan and dfgital clock, includes Bluetooth streaming audio for music and select phones. (STD) 

SiriusXM Radio, delete 

6-speaker audio system 

This document contains lnformatlol'I considerad Confidential between GM and Its Clients uniquely. The Information provlded is not intended ror public disclosure. Prices, 
speciffcalions, and avallablllty are subjed lo change without notice, and do not lnc;lude certaln fees, taxes and charges that may be required by law or val'f by manufacturer or region. 
Performance figures an, guidellnas only. and actual performance may vary. Photos may not represent actual vehides or e,cact configurations. Content based on report preparer's 
Input Is subject to the aca.iracy of the input providOcd, 
Data Version: 7565. Data Updated: Jan 31, 2019 9:59:00 PM PST. 

Feb 1, 2019 Page 12 

--

.. 
• 

• 

Item 4C
14 of 26



■ Winner Chevrolet I Elk Grove Auto Group
Jerry Powers I 916-426-5752 I JPowers@LasherAuto.com 

Entertainment 

Interior 

Safety-Mechanical 

Safety-Interior 

(Fleet] 2019 Chevrolet Silverado 2500HD (CK25953) 4WD Double Cab 158.1� (12) 

Bluetooth for phone, personal cell phone connectivity to vehicle audio system 

Seats, front 40/20/40 split-bench, 3-passenger, driver and front passenger recline with outboard head restraints 
and center fold-down armrest with storage. Vinyl has fixed lumbar and cloth has manually adjustable driver 
lumbar. (STD) (Upgradeable to (AZ3) front 40/20/40 split-bench seat.) 

Seat trim, Vinyl 

Seat. rear full-width folding bench, 3-passenger (includes child seat top tether anchor) (Requires Double Cab 
models.) 

Floor covering, Graphite-colored nubberized-vinyl 

Steering column, manual TIit-Wheei 

Steering wheel 

Instrumentation, 6-gauge cluster featuring speedometer, fuel level, engine temperature, tachometer, voltage and 
oil pressure 

Driver Information Center, 3.5-inch diagonal monochromatic display provides warning messages and basic 
vehicle information 

Windows, power with driver express up and down and express down on all other windows (Standard on Crew 
Cab and Double Cab models. On Regular Cab model, included and only available with (PCM) WT Fleet 
Convenience Package (Double Cab and Regular Cab.) 

Door locks, power 

Cruise control, steering wheel-mounted 

Air conditioning, single-zone 

Assist handle, front passenger and driver on A-pillars 

StabiliTrak, stability control system with Proactive Roll Avoidance and traction control includes electronic trailer 
sway control and hill start assist 

Daytime Running Lamps with automatic exterior lamp control 

Airbags, Double Cab: Single-stage frontal airbag for dnver; Dual-stage front airbag for front outboard passenger; 
Seat-mounted side-Impact airbags for driver and front outboard passenger: Head-curtain airbags for front and 
rear outboard seating positions; Includes front outboard Passenger Sensing System for frontal outboard 
passenger airbag (With (ZW9) pickup box delete on Double Cab and Regular Cab you will get the following: 
Single-stage frontal airbags for driver and front outboard passenger, Seat-mounted side-impact airbags for 
driver and front outboard passenger; Head-curtain airbags for front and rear outboard seating positions: Includes 
airbag deactivation switch forfront outboard passenger airbag. Always use seat belts and child restraints. 
Children are safer when property secured in a rear seat In the appropriate child restraint. See the Owner's 
Manual for more information. Regular Cab model does not have rear outboard seating positions.) 

This document cootalns inlonnation considered ConftdentJal betwee11 GM and Its Clients uniquely. The Information prcvlded Is not Intended for public disclosure. Prices. 
specifications, and availability are subject to change without notice, and do not Include certain fees, taxes and charges 1hat may be required by law or vary by manufacturer or region. 
Performance f111ures are guldet:nes only, and actual performance may vary. Photos may not represent actual vehlcJes or exact configurations. Conh!nt based on repon preparers 
Input Is subject lo Ille accuracy ot the input provided. 
Oata Version: 7565. Data Updated: Jan 31, 2D19 9:59:00 PM PST. 

Feb 1, 2019 Page 13 

I • 

Item 4C
15 of 26



■ Winner Chevrolet / Elk Grove Auto Group 
Jerry Powers I 916-426-5752 I JPowers@LasherAuto.com 

(Fleet) 2019 Chevrolel Sllverado 2500HD (CK25953) 4WD Double Cab 158.1" (12) 

Safety-Interior 

OnSlar, delele also deleles driver Information cenler compass. 

Rear ViSlon camera (Removed when (ZW9) pickup box delete Is ordered.) 

Teen Driver configurable feature that lets you activate customi.able vehicle s&ttings associated with a ~ey fob, 
to encourage safe driving behavior. rt can limit certain vehicle features. and ii prevents certain safely systems 
from being turned off. An in-vehicle report card gives you information on your teen's driving habas and helps you 
to continue to coach your new driver 

WARRANTY 

Tire Pressure Monitoring System with nre Foll Alert (does not apply to spare Ure) 

Basic Years: 3 
Basie Miles/km: 36,000 
Drivetrain Years: 5 
Orivetrain Miles/km: 60,000 
Drivetraln Note: HD DYramax Diesel: 5 Years/100,000 MIies; Qualified Fleel Pun:hases: 5 Years/100,000 Miles 
Comision Years (Rust-Through): 6 
Comision Years· 3 
Corrosion Miles/l<m (Rusi-Through): 100,000 
Com,sion Miles/km: 36,000 
Roadside Asslslance Years: 5 
Roadside Assistance Miles/km: 60,000 
Roadside Assistance Note: HO Ouramax Diesel: 5 Years/100,000 Miles: Ouallfie<l Fleel Purchases: 5 
Years/100,000 Miles 
Maintenance Note: 1 Yearll Visil 

Technical Specifications 

Powartraln 

Transmission 

Drivetraln 

Trans Type 

Trans Description Con I. Again 

Second Gear Ratio (:1) 

Fourth Gear Ratio (:1) 

Sixth Gear Ratio (:1) 

Clutch Size 

Final Drive Axle Ratio (:1) 

Transfer case Gear Ralio (:1), High 

Tran sf er Case Power Take Off 

Four Wheel Drive 

6 

NIA 

2.36 

1.15 

0.67 

NIA 

NIA 

1.00 

NIA 

Trans Order Code 

Trans Description ConL 

Firs! Gear Ratio (:1) 

Third Gear Ralio (:1) 

fillh Gear Ratio (:1) 

Reverse Rallo (:1) 

Trans Power Take Off 

Transfer Casa Model 

Transfer Case Gear Ratio (:1 ), Low 

MYD 

Automatic 

4.03 

1.53 

0.85 

3,06 

NIA 

Magna 
MP12221516 

2.n 

This doOJment COf'Ulns nfotmaaon eoneidOrOO Conr.dendal t>otwttn GM end ftt Clonts uniQuOly. ltie lnrctma,on provld~ ls not lnlende<f to, ptj,llcdlsciosure. Prices, 
se>etificatklrtJ. and svaiab15ty ate M:!Joct to Cflangt wlthoU1 nollce, and 00 ~ lndude t'OIUI~ fees,. Wes and charges lhat may t,re required by law or very by manufaC'lurvr or nigion. 
Pfflormanoo figur9• ,re aukfdines Otlly, end 1ctual pet'fom\lnee may ¥1,Y. Pholoa may not re,,ntMnt ec:tual ,;ehldes or euctconl!Qf.lR.lion1. Con~m bas.ed on report preparer'• 
Snpua lt s\Jtli6(:I to lho accuracy d the tnput provided, 
Data Version: 7585. Data Upcla!ed J1n 31, 2019 & 59:00 PM PST, 

Feb 1, 2019 P119e 14 

Item 4C
16 of 26



THIS IS YOUR QUOTE 
DOWNTOWN FORD SALES 
525 N16th Street, Sacramento, CA. 95811 
916-442•6931 fax 916-491 ·3138 

QUOTE# COLFAXF2S04X4 

QUOTATION------
Customer 

Name CHAIS CLARDY 

Address !'0 BOX 7-=:.02=----------
City COLFAX CA -'-9-'-57--'-1-'-3 __ 
Phone _530.346.2313 

~ Descrif)lion 
1 NEW F-250 SUPERCAB PICK 4X4 X2B 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACT 1-t8-23·23A 

CLIN 23 SALES TAX 7.25% 

1 .ELECTRONIC LOCKING REAR AXLE 2AXL 
1 LONG8ED-8'BED/l64. we 
1 XLT PACKAGE {See Builci Sheet for list of Options) 2XLT 
1 110V/400W OUTLET 243C 
1 ALL TERRAIN TIRES 2TBM 
1 BACK UP ALARM 276C 
·1 CARPET DELETE 2166 
1 DAYTIME RUNNING LIGHTS 0942 
1 HD SERVICE SUSPENSION 267H 
1 SKID PLATES 413 
1 TRAILER BRAKE CONTROLLER 2528 
1 WARRANTY-EXTRA CARE 5YR/100,000.$100DED 

3WTY 

1 DMV0OCFEE 

Payment Details "\ 

0 
@ 
0 

Name 
CC# 

Cash Taxes 
Check 
Cred~ Card 

Expires --·--

Date 
REP 
Phone 
FOB 

f Unit Price 
$26.354.00 

$389.00 
$214.00 

$4,897.00 
$177.00 
$167.00 
$141.00 

$41.00 
$45.00 

$127.00 
$159.00 
$574.00 

$2,242.00 

$85.00 
Subtotal 
Delivery 

SALES TAX 

CATireTaK 
TOTAL 

$500 DISCOUNT IF PAID WITHIN 20 DAV OF DELIVERY 

2/8/2019 
WIL 
916.442.6931 
SACRAMENTO 

TOTAL 
$26,354.00 

$389.00 
$214.00 

$4,897.00 
$177.00 
$167.00 
$141.00 
($41.00) 
$45.00 

$127.00 
$159.00 
$574.00 

$2,242.00 

$85.00 
$35,530.00 

$595.00 
$2,407.22 

$7.00 , 
$38,539.22 

J 

Item 4C
17 of 26



DODGE FLEET SALES

Paint Procedure : 

Interior Trim: 

Primary Paint: 

Seats: 

DJ7L62: 2018 RAM 1500/2500/3500 

Monotone Paint (APA) 

Black/ Diesel Gray Interior Colors (·X8) 

Bright White Clear Coat (PW7) 

Cloth 40/20/40 Bench Seat ('\/9) 
...................................................................... _ .......................................... . 

Base Price: $ 35445.00 

22A Package : $ 455.00 

Options: $1441.00 

Color: $ 86.00 

Destination ; $1695.00 

Total Price• : $ 39122.00 

• Tht Fr,,_. Pvrc"'•• lit'lu111lv1(Clol.\) NI bHn d1d1Jdlll "'- Ullt Citic., N 01tlot Fl1ot ot Rtull dl-.cOollnl.a 1pply, your Jf'lu m1y ._ ltu. 
fti1 ,.W, .. tNIMII 41'1 prklnll ln11tf1c1 II ol 1013,0,/2007 fti1 FWP ,_flec:;b th1 cholut )'l'llt'Nlllll In 1qulppJng yo,u.-~ SN )'O\lf d1•r for"'' vtflt lflfo1n11tl-

Item 4C
18 of 26



� ............. . ...._

2 .. -

FLEET OPERATIONS 

DII UAICIIII THAT NIVI IUIIIIIU 

Fleet Vehicle Configuration for null 

FLEET 
1-800-999-FLEET

[ - - j Item 4C
19 of 26



Standard Features 

■5.7L VB HEMI V\/T Engine (EZC) 
■6-Spd Automatic 66RFE Transmission (DFP) 
■ Man S hift-On-The-Fly Transfer Case (DK1) 
■ Heavy Duty Suspension (SDB) 
■ Front Stabilizer Bar (SHA) 
■ 11.50" Single Wheel Rear Axle (DRQ) 
■ Conventional Differential Frt Axle {D57) 
■ 6,000# Front Axle (DJN) 
■ Conventional Different al Rear Axle (DSB) 
■ 6 Speakers (RCG) 
■ Radio 3.0 {RA 1 ) 
■ Remote USB Port • Charge Only (RS3) 
■ Media Hub (USB, Aux) (RSS) 
■Audio Jack Input for Mobile Devices (RSU) 
■ Remote USB Port (RSX} 
■ Fixed Long Mast Antenna {ROD) 
■ Air Condition ng (HAA) 
■ RR View Auto D im Mirror w/Display (GN4) 
■ Rear View Day/Night Mirror (GNA) 
■ Instrument Panel Parts Module (X81) 
■ Door Parts Module (X82) 
■ Front End Parts Module (XB3) 
■ Tire & Wheel Parts Module (X88) 
■ Vendor Pa:nted Cargo Box Tracking {42B) 
■Seat Parts Module (XBZ) 
■Gw-1 Rating- 9000# (27C) 
■3.73 Axle Ratio (DME) 
■ Monotone Pa nt (APA) 
■ 17X7.5 Steel Styled Wheels (WDA) 
■ Center Hub (WMJ) 

Package Selected 

■ Customer Preferred Package 2TA 
- 6-Spd Automatic 66RFE Transmission 
- 6.4L Heavy Duty VB HEMI with MOS 

• AddlUonal Standard Features 

Options Configured 

■ 5th Wheel/Gooseneck Towing Prep Grp (AHU) 
$450.00 

eAnt .. sp n Differential Rear Axle (OSA) 
SO.DO 

•Man Shift-On-The-Fly Transfer Case (DK1) 
SO.OD 

• Uconnecl 3.0 (UA 1) 
$177,00 
Media Hub (USB, Aux) (RS6) 
Integrated Voice Command w th Bluetooth!l) (XRB) 

• 18XB.O Steel Wheels (WBN) 
so 00 
Center Hub (WMJ) 
18-tnch Steel Spare Wheel (WKN) 

•Protection Group (ADB) 
so 00 
Tow Hooks (XEA) 
Transfer Case Skid Plate (XEF) 

■Chrome Appearance Group (AED) 
$814 00 
Bright Front Bumper (MCT) 
Bright Grille (MFD) 
Bnght Rear Bumper (MBF) 
LT275/70R18E BSW All Season Tires (TCN) 
18-lnch x 8 0-lnch Steel Chrome Clad Wheels 

(WBH) 
18-lnch Steel Spare Wheel (WKN) 
L T275/70R18E BSW On/Off•Road nres (TCM) 

Accessories Added 

None 

All prvduct llluatratlon■ arid spectfic•llor,1 are based upon curnnt lnform1llon at th• t.Jm• thlc •P•clRc■Uon ■heet waa printed. Although description, ■ra bel�vad 
correct. compf•tct accuracy c11nnot b• guuanteftd. FCA US LLC nH�• the r1ght to mah• ch1n9e1 ■1 any tlm•i Wtrlthout notJce or .:ibUa.aUon, ln pric:••• lnc:enUve 
programs, 1rwcJflcaU1:1ns, aqulpmant. cplor"I, m.t•ri1l1, and lo c:hang■ or diac:ontinue models. Th• Standard Equipm■nt Hat hlghU;hts ••lect•d 1;tom1 - HI I catalog 
or your dealer for full det.11■, 

i 

• 

Item 4C
20 of 26



**** * * ! OLD REPUBLIC INSURED AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES 
**••"" 

Extended Protection Plans for 
New and Pre-Owned Vehicles 

Item 4C
21 of 26



r-

Item 4C
22 of 26



lfyou purchase the Deluxe Plan, the covered parts are: 

Engine: 
All internal parts; manifolds; timing gears, tensioner and guides, 
chain or belt; flex plate; oil pump; water pump; fuel delivery pump; 
throttle body; throttle cable/linkage; fuel lines and fuel regulators; 
camshaft and crankshaft position sensors; lrnock sensors; manifold 
pressure sensors; EGR valve; temperature sensors; thermostat: 
electric cooling fan motors; fan clutch and pulleys; belt tensioner: 
coolant recovery tank; radiator and mounts; engine mounts: 
harmonic balancer; turbocharger/supercharger housings and internal 
parts; wastegate; bypass valve; actuators and sensors. The engine 
block and heads, valve covers, timing cover, and oil pan are covered 
only if damaged by the failure of an internal part. 

Transmission (Automatic or Manual): 
All internal parts; torque converter; transmission pan; transmission 
mounts; vacuum modulator; shifter and shift linkage; electronic 
shift control module; se~ors, solenoids and switches; auxiliary 
cooler, hydraulic clutch master cylinder and slave cylinder. The 
transmission case is covered only if damaged by the failure of an 
internal part. 

Transfer Case: 
All internal parts; transfer case mounts; shifter and shift linkage; 
electronic shift control module; sensors, solenoids, and switches; all 
wheel drive engagement module and actuator. The transfer case is 
covered only if damaged by the failure of an internal part. 

Drive Axle (Front/Rear Wheel Drive): 
All internal parts; axle shafts; constant velocity joints (except any 
damage to the constant velocity joint due to the fai lure of the sealing 
boot is not covered); universal joints; propeller shafts; center support 
bearings; axle bearings; hubs and hub bearings; locking :rings. The 
driYe axle case is covered only if damaged by the failure of an 
internal part. 

Steering: 
Gear housing, rack and pinion, internal steering rack seals, and all 
internal components; power steering pump and pump seal; power 
steering lines/hoses; tilt wheel mechanism; steering linkage; idler 
am1; tie rod ends; pitman arms; center link; steering dampener: 
steering column shafts, joints and couplings. 

Suspension (Front and Rear): 
Upper and lower control arms; control ann shafts and bushings: 
control arm linkage; ball joints; torsion bars and bushings; steering 
lrnuckles / spindles; stabilizer shaft linkage and bushings; wheel 
bearings; springs; MacPherson strut upper mount/bearing plate (strut 
shock absorber function is not covered). 

\ 
I 

i 

l 

Air Conditioning: 
Compressor; clutch and pulley; condenser; evaporator; receiver
drier; refrigerant valves; expansion valve and pressure cycling 
switch; accumulator; idler pulley and bearings; orifice tube; 
temperature control panel and module; vent mode door actuator and 

motor; blower motor and resistor; heater control valve and heater 

core. 

Brakes: 
Master cylinder and seals; wheel cylinders and seals; disc brake 
calipers; power brake booster; hydraulic brake lines, fittings and 
rnlves; parking brake linkage and cables; anti-lock brake system: 
electronic control unit, wheel / speed sensor(s), valve(s), hydraulic 
unit, accumulator, modulator, and actuator(s); linkage and hardware 
(backing plates, caliper mounting pins, etc.). 

Electrical: 
Alternator; starter motor; starter solenoid; Staner drive; alternator 
Yoltage regulator; power window motor; po,,·er seat motor; wiper 
motors; backup light, brake light, and interior light switches; 
distributor; manually operated switches; coil; horns: horn relay; 
electronic ignition module; rear window defroster (except for 
physical damage); rear window heating relay; po,Yer door lock 
and actuator; convertible top motor; power antenna motor and 
mast drive cable; electronic fuel injection sensors, control unit and 
injectors; electronic transmission control module; gauges; stereo or 

audio equipment; cruise control components; sunroof motor; mirror 
motors; wiper washer pump and motor; combination entry system 
transmitters and receivers. 

Chassis Hardware: 
Hood/door/hatch/trunk latches, cables, hinges. supports and springs; 
glove box/console lock and latch; ignition lock and tumbler; window 
regulators; seat belts; trunk and fuel door release cables or controls; 
T-Top latches; manual sunroof latch; mechanical seat tracks and 

springs. 

Seals and Gaskets Coverage: 
Seals and gaskets coverage is provided with the Deluxe Plan for all 

parts listed in the above named component groups. 

Please refer to the service contract for complete information 
regarding coverage. 

- . - . . --· ---·- · ------ - - - --- --- -' 

Item 4C
23 of 26



Supreme Plan Coverage 

Supreme is our most comprehensive coverage plan. 

The Supreme Plan complements your vehicle's factory warranty 
provided by the manufacturer. In fact, the Supreme Plan provides 
mechanical breakdown protection for all original equipment 

factory installed mechanical and electrical parts and assemblies 
of your vehicle, EXCEPT for those parts and services listed under 
the "General Exclusions" section of the service contract. 

Supreme Wrap Plan Coverage 
Supplemental protection for vehicles with extended factory 

powcrtrai n coverage." 

Supreme Wrap "wraps around" the vehicle manufacturer's 
warranty by providing coverage for all original NON
POWERTRATN factory installed mechanical and electrical 
parts and assemblies of your vehicle for mechanical breakdown, 
EXCEPT for parts and services listed under the "General 
Exclusions" section of the service contract. 

Examples of parts and services not 
covered are: 

Adjustments and cleaning, battery and cables, drive 
belts, coolant and vacuum hoses, brakes: brake drums. 
shoes, linings, disc rotors and pads, exhaust syste~ 
(including catalytic converter), filters, fluids ( except in 
qmjunction with a covered repair), glass, lights (bulbs, 
sealed beams and lenses), lubricants, manual clutch 
components, shock absorbers or MacPherson struts, 
spark plugs and wires, squeaks and rattles, tune-ups, 
wheel balancing and alignment, wiper blades, coolant, 
wheels, wheel studs, door and window handles, cellular 
phones, any component or equipment not installed by 
the vehicle manufacturer 

and 

Maintenance services recommended by your vehicle 
manufacturer. 

Please refer to the service contract for complete information 
regarding coverage. 

Item 4C
24 of 26



In addition to the coverages detailed, you have the advantage of 

extra benefits such as: 

Towing: 
In the event of a breakdown covered by this contract, all Total 
Vehicle Protection Plans provide for reimbursement of receipted 

towing expenses up to seventy-five dollars ($75) per occurrence_ 

Car Rental: 
lf your vehicle incurs a covered breakdown, you may also be 

eligible to receive reimbursement for a portion of your car rental 
costs_ The amount depends upon the total authorized cost of 

covered repairs for each repair visit, as shown in the table below: 

Repair $200 - $501 - $1 ,001- $1,501 -
$2,001+ 

Cost $500 $1,000 $1,500 $2,000 

' Reimburse-
ment 

$50 $100 $150 $200 $250 

Trip Interruption: 
In case of a mechanical breakdown that occurs more than one 

hundred (100) miles from home and results in a repair facility 
keeping your vehicle overnight, you can rest easier knowing 
the contract will reimburse for receipted hotel and restaurant 
expenses_ You could be reimbursed up to one hundred dollars 
($100) per day for a maximum of three (3) days and a total benefit 

per occurrence of three hundred dollars ($300)-

Please refer to the service contract for complete information regarding 

coverage. 

Roadside Assistance*: 
All of our plans provide reimbursement for Roadside Assistance, 
subject to a fifty dollars (S50) per occurrence limitation. The 

emergency services for which this would apply are: 

• Lock-Out Assistance 

• Fuel Delivery Services 

• Flat Tire Assistance 

Battery Service 

"Not available in some states. 

Tire Road Hazard: 
The Tire Road Hazard benefit provides coverage for the repair, or 

if necessary, the replacement of any of your whicle ·s tires which 
have become damaged or unsafe for use due to a road hazard loss 

for the entire term of this contract. Tire coverage coH:rs up to two 

hundred dollars ($200) per occurrence or eight hundred dollars 

(S800) ~uring the term of the contract. 

~o Deductible applies to the additional benefits. 

Item 4C
25 of 26



Total Vehicle Protection plans arc fully insured by 

Old Republic Insurance Company, which is rated 

A+ (Superior) by A.M. Best Company. Old Republic 

Insured Automotive Services, Inc. is a full-service 

marketing and administrative company specializing in 

the automotive services industry since 1974. For more 

than 40 years, we've provided quality. value-added 

service contracts to automobile dealers and their retail 

customers throughout the nation. As an organization. 

we take seriously our commitment to provide our 

customers with the security they depend on when the 

unexpected arises. 

Item 4C
26 of 26



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE FEBRUARY 27, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Chris J. Clardy, Community Services Director 

DATE: February 20, 2019 

SUBJECT: Fire Station 37 Roof Repair 
 

 N/A  X FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: $13,500 
FROM FUND: 100-500 Buildings and 
Grounds 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 05-2019 authorizing the City Manager to enter into an 
agreement with Five Star Roofing for installation of a new roof on Fire Station 37, in an amount not to 
exceed $13,500.  

 

DISCUSSION AND SUMMARY: 
The City of Colfax Fire Station 37 roof is in a state of disrepair and the firehouse itself an eyesore. During the 
2017/18 budget adoption process, City Council approved funding for fire station repair projects. These projects 
were rolled over into FY 2018/19 and 2019/2020. The FY 2018/19 project included a new roof for Fire Station 37 
to be funded using Fund 100-500:  Buildings and Grounds. 
 

Staff solicited quotes for the removal of the old roof and installation of either a new composite shingle roof or 
metal roof.  The cost breakdowns are as follows: 
 

Contractor Shingle Cost Metal Cost 

Five Star Roofing $10,760 $14,760 

Volt Modern Roofing $11,650 $20,600 

Sherman Brother’s Roofing $15,000 $26,150 
 

Based on these quotes, staff recommends the installation of the Owens Corning Duration Cool Shingles 50-year 
composition roof.  This recommendation is based on several factors.  Although metal roofs have a reputation of 
long life and composite roofs typically must be replaced after 30 years, even 30 years is most likely beyond the 
useful life of the building.  The Owens Corning product does come with a 50-year guarantee.  The lower cost of a 
shingle roof will afford the opportunity to apply the unused funds for additional improvements to the City’s Fire 
Stations including painting and improved fire equipment access to Station 36.   The asphalt roof will not require 
the extra costs of insulation need to mitigate the weather impacts of using a metal roof. 
 

RECOMMENDATION AND FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
Staff recommends the City Council authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract agreement with Five Star 
Roofing for the removal of the old roof and installation of a composite shingle roof on Fire Station 37 in an 
amount not to exceed $13,500, which includes a 25% contingency above the cost estimate. The contingency is 
higher than the typical 10% because the extent of dry rot damage is unknown.  
  

The cost of the Project is $10,760 with a $25% contingency of $2,690 for a total of $13,500 from Fund 100-500. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  1.  Resolution 05-2019  2.  Bid Proposals 

Item 4D
1 of 7



Resolution 05-2019 – Fire Station 37 Roof Page 1 
 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 05-2019 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN 
AGREEMENT WITH FIVE STAR ROOFING FOR THE INSTALLATION 

OF A NEW ROOF ON FIRE STATION 37, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $13,500 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved capital improvements for structural repairs 
during the 2017/18 Fiscal Year Budget process; and  

 
WHEREAS, City staff solicited quotes from three roofing contractors; and 
 
WHEREAS, Five Star Roofing was the lowest responsive bidder; and. 
 
WHEREAS, City staff is recommending City Council approve an agreement with Five 

Star Roofing for the installation of Owens Corning Duration Cool Shingles 50 year 
composition roof on Fire Station 37 in an amount not to exceed $13,500. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Colfax 

authorizes the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Five Star Roofing for the 
installation of a new Owens Corning Duration Cool Shingle composition roof in an amount 
not to exceed $13,500. 

 
THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at a 

regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 27th day of February, 
2019 by the following vote of the Council: 
 
AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   

                                                                 
___________________________________ 

       Joe Fatula, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 

Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

Item 4D
2 of 7



Item 4D
3 of 7



Item 4D
4 of 7



Item 4D
5 of 7



Item 4D
6 of 7



Item 4D
7 of 7



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE FEBRUARY 27, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager  
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE: February 13, 2019 
SUBJECT: Mid-Year Budget Review – Fiscal Year 2018-2019 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: $ FROM FUND: 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Review and accept the Mid- Year Budget Report Fiscal Year 2018-2019 

 
ISSUE STATEMENT AND DISCUSSION: 
In accordance with City policy, the City Manager will provide the City Council with a mid-year review of the 
City’s financial activities.  The review will be presented in February and compare annual budget projections 
(adopted budget) with actual results (projected actuals). 
 
City staff has completed a detailed review for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 of all Funds for all revenue and 
expense accounts.  The review is based on six months of actual revenues and expenditures (through 
December 31, 2018) and projections for the balance of the fiscal year based on current City activities and 
programs. The projected actuals for the fiscal year are within the adopted budget limitations. 
 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS 
The attached Mid-Year Budget Review – Fund Summary report provides a summarized comparison of fiscal 
year end projected actuals to the adopted budget by fund and department.   
 
City-wide, the difference between the adopted budget and the projected actuals is a favorable increase 
(Net Change) in Fund Balance for total City funds in the amount of $477,211.  The chart below summarizes 
the difference by major fund and revenue/expense category.  
 

Item 7A
1 of 5



2 

 

Projected 

Actuals Adopted Budget Net Change

General Fund Unrestricted

Revenue 2,326,000$         2,053,300$         272,700$           

Expense (1,833,941)$       (1,830,160)$       (3,781)$              

Transfers (313,399)$          (325,837)$          12,438$             

Net Fund Activity 178,660$           (102,697)$          281,357$           

General Fund Restricted

Revenue 80,000$             80,000$             -$                  

Expense (84,382)$            (84,382)$            -$                  

Transfers 21,883$             21,883$             -$                  

Net Fund Activity 17,501$             17,501$             -$                  

Special Revenues/Capital Projects

Revenue 3,915,663$         3,782,601$         133,062$           

Expense (439,474)$          (369,912)$          (69,563)$            

Transfers (3,275,262)$       (3,262,824)$       (12,438)$            

Net Fund Activity 200,927$           149,865$           51,061$             

Enterprise Funds

Revenue 2,110,009$         2,102,731$         7,278$               

Expense (1,693,040)$       (1,830,555)$       137,515$           

Transfers (160,000)$          (160,000)$          

Net Fund Activity 256,969$           112,177$           144,793$           

Total City 654,057$           176,846$           477,211$            
 
Staff completed a detailed review of all City funds and compared projected actual results against the 
adopted budget expectations by individual revenue and expense accounts.  The major differences between 
the adopted budget and the projected actuals are summarized in the following analyses by Fund type. 
 
General Fund Unrestricted 
The chart below summarizes the Net Change from the fiscal year 2018-2019 Adopted Budget to Projected 
Actuals in Revenue and Expenses by the major categories. 
 

 

Revenues Expenses

1 Sales/Property Tax Increase 151,000$      -$             

2 Increase in Development Activities 90,000$        (80,000)$       

3 Legal Expenses -$             (65,000)$       

4 General Planning and Building Activities -$             39,000$        

5 Debt Service (Paid off 2018 Winner Property) -$             44,000$        

6 Grant Writer -$             35,000$        

7 Rents/Leases and Interest Income 26,000$        -$             

8 Parks - Repairs & Maintenance - to FY2019 -$             10,000$        

9 Other 5,700$          13,219$        

Total 272,700$      (3,781)$        

General Fund Unrestricted - Net Change

 
 

Item 7A
2 of 5



3 

 

1. Sales tax revenues are expected to be nearly 10% higher than the fiscal year 2018-2019 Adopted 
Budget based on the best estimates available.  Year to date actuals indicate a favorable upward 
trend similar to FY2017-2018 exceeded revenue trend.   

2. Development activities have increased which results in a higher projection for both revenue and 
expenses (Planning, Engineering, Other Services) in this category. 

3. The City has incurred unanticipated legal expenses related to illegal cannabis business operations in 
City limits. 

4. General Planning and Building Inspector activities are still greater than previous years, but less than 
originally anticipated for the year.  As mentioned above, planning activities are higher for 
Development activities. 

5. The budgeted debt service actually ended up being paid out of excess sales tax earnings for FY2017-
2018. 

6. City budgeted Grant Writer costs in the amount of $45,000 – of which approximately $10,000 is the 
current forecast for the year. 

7. The current estimate for Interest earnings is $20,000 higher than budgeted amount due to 
increased fund levels and increasing interest rates.  The Adopted Budget did not include increased 
rents/leases for City properties which have been renewed or entered into this fiscal year. 

8. Anticipated expenditures for Maintenance on the Art Park are not expected this fiscal year. 
9. Other – Balance of all other Revenue/Expense categories 

 
Special Revenues & Capital Projects 
The chart below summarizes the Net Change from the fiscal year 2018-2019 Adopted Budget to Projected 
Actuals in Revenue and Expenses by the major categories for all Special Revenues and Capital Projects: 
 

  

Revenues Expenses

1 Fire Capital Fund - Strike Team Income/Exp 132,135$      (81,074)$       

2 Streets and Roads 927$            11,511$        

Total 133,062$      (69,563)$       

Special Revenues/Capital Projects

 
 

1. Revenues and expenses are expected to exceed budget for the Fire Capital Fund due to volunteer 
staff and City equipment covering the Cal Fire station during the devastating fires this season. 

2. Projected actuals for Streets and Roads expenditures are 5% less than adopted budget  
 
Enterprise Funds 
The chart below summarizes the Net Change from the fiscal year 2018-2019 Adopted Budget to Projected 
Actuals in Revenue and Expenses by the major categories for all Enterprise Funds: 
 

Revenues Expenses

1 Interest Income 20,000$        -$             

2 Labor and Professional Services -$             64,000$        

3 Utilities -$             10,000$        

4 Sludge Removal - to FY2019 -$             15,000$        

5 Bacteria/Lab/Chronic Testing -$             25,000$        

6 Materials & Supplies -$             15,000$        

7 Other (12,722)$       8,515$          

Total 7,278$          137,515$      

Enterprise Funds - Net Change

 

Item 7A
3 of 5



4 

 

 
1. The primary contributor to the increase in interest income is higher interest rates being earned in 

addition to larger fund balances.   
2. Labor and Professional services are projected to be lower due to decreased reliance on outside 

services and having a vacant position for a portion of the year (offset by temporary services 
utilized). 

3. Utility expenses are anticipated to be less than adopted budget by $10,000. 
4. Sludge removal for Pond 2 is expected to roll forward to next fiscal year. 
5. Testing costs are anticipated to be lower than budgeted expenses due to new permit requirements. 
6. Materials and Supplies expense is expected to be less than budget. 
7. Other – Balance of all other Revenue/Expense categories. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that Council accepts the Mid-Year Budget Report for FY2018-2019. 
 
The results of this Mid-Year Budget review will be incorporated into an analysis of the Fiscal Year 2019-
2020.  Staff intends to provide a review and possible budget amendments prior to the beginning of the new 
fiscal year.  At that time, we will also be completing our regular annual processes: 

• Review of Accounting Procedure 

• Review of Investment Policy 

• Establish Gann Appropriation Limit FY2019-2020 

• Fraud/Risk Discussions 
 

 

 
Attachment: 
 

1. Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Mid-Year Budget Review – Fund Summary 

 

Item 7A
4 of 5



Fund Dept
Projected 
Actuals

Adopted 
Budget Difference

Projected 
Actuals

Adopted 
Budget Difference

Projected 
Actuals

Adopted 
Budget Difference

Projected 
Actuals

Adopted 
Budget Difference

  General Fund ‐ Unrestricted
100 000 2,161,000  1,978,300  182,700     -             (313,399)      (325,837)       12,438       1,847,601  1,652,463  195,138     

100 100 Central Services -             -             187,900     125,300     62,600       -               -                -             (187,900)    (125,300)    (62,600)      

100 110 City Council -             -             23,300       66,800       (43,500)      -               -                -             (23,300)      (66,800)      43,500       

100 120 Administration/Finance -             -             254,123     255,348     (1,225)        -               -                -             (254,123)    (255,348)    1,225         

100 160 Legal -             -             61,600       61,600       -             -               -                -             (61,600)      (61,600)      -             

100 200 Fire -             -             71,850       67,500       4,350         -               -                -             (71,850)      (67,500)      (4,350)        

100 300 Sheriff -             -             583,152     583,152     -             -               -                -             (583,152)    (583,152)    -             

100 400 Building Department -             -             90,900       108,900     (18,000)      -               -                -             (90,900)      (108,900)    18,000       

100 425 Engineering -             -             21,000       21,000       -             -               -                -             (21,000)      (21,000)      -             

100 450 Planning -             -             65,000       85,800       (20,800)      -               -                -             (65,000)      (85,800)      20,800       

100 500 Buildings and Grounds -             -             206,834     253,450     (46,617)      -               -                -             (206,834)    (253,450)    46,617       

100 530 Parks  -             -             131,283     144,310     (13,027)      -               -                -             (131,283)    (144,310)    13,027       

100 ‐ Land Development 165,000     75,000       90,000       137,000     57,000       80,000       -               -                -             28,000       18,000       10,000       

Total General Fund ‐ Unrestricted 2,326,000   2,053,300   272,700     1,833,941 1,830,160 3,781         (313,399)       (325,837)       12,438       178,660     (102,697)   281,357     

General Fund ‐ Restricted
XXX ‐ Capital Project Reserve -             -             -             -             -             50,000         50,000           -             50,000       50,000       -             

571 ‐ AB939 Landfill Diversion -             -             -             -             -             (28,117)        (28,117)         -             (28,117)      (28,117)      -             

572 ‐ Landfill ‐ Postclosure Maint 80,000       80,000       -             84,382       84,382       -             -               -                -             (4,382)        (4,382)        -             

Total General Fund ‐ Restricted 80,000         80,000        ‐              84,382       84,382       ‐              21,883          21,883           ‐              17,501       17,501       ‐              

Special Revenues
210-17 ‐ Mitigation Funds 343,401     343,401     -             -             -             -             (45,000)        (45,000)         -             298,401     298,401     -             

218 ‐ Support Law Enforcement 100,000     100,000     -             100,000     100,000     -             -               -                -             -             -             -             

241-44 ‐ CDBG Program Income 1,500         1,500         -             6,000         6,000         -             (205,000)      (205,000)       -             (209,500)    (209,500)    -             

250 ‐ Streets‐Roads/Transportation 133,427     132,500     927            228,400     239,912     (11,511)      131,799       144,237         (12,438)      36,826       36,825       0                

253 ‐ Gas Taxes 41,600       41,600       -             19,000       19,000       -             (22,600)        (22,600)         -             -             -             -             

270 ‐ Beverage Recycling -             -             -             -             -             -             (17,961)        (17,961)         -             (17,961)      (17,961)      -             

292 ‐ Fire Capital Fund 144,135     12,000       132,135     86,074       5,000         81,074       -               -                -             58,061       7,000         51,061       

342/343 ‐ Fire & Rec Const Mitigation 35,100       35,100       -             -             -             -             -               -                -             35,100       35,100       -             

Total Special Revenues 799,163       666,101      133,062     439,474     369,912     69,563       (158,762)       (146,324)       (12,438)      200,927     149,865     51,061       

Capital Projects
3XX ‐ Capital Projects 3,116,500  3,116,500  -             -             -             -             (3,116,500)   (3,116,500)    -             -             -             -             

Total Capital Projects 3,116,500   3,116,500   ‐              ‐              ‐              ‐              (3,116,500)    (3,116,500)    ‐              ‐              ‐              ‐              

Enterprise Funds
560 ‐ Sewer WWTP Maint and Ops 1,217,562  1,192,562  25,000       1,034,998  1,169,800  (134,802)    (55,000)        (55,000)         -             127,565     (32,237)      159,802     

561 ‐ Sewer Collections Systems 188,447     188,447     -             219,068     221,781     (2,713)        (65,000)        (65,000)         -             (95,621)      (98,334)      2,713         

563 ‐ WWTP/Debt Service 520,000     537,722     (17,722)      438,974     438,974     -             (137,500)      (137,500)       -             (56,474)      (38,752)      (17,722)      

XXX ‐ Reserves 184,000     184,000     -             -             -             97,500         97,500           -             281,500     281,500     -             

  Total Enterprise Funds 2,110,009   2,102,731   7,278         1,693,040 1,830,555 (137,515)   (160,000)       (160,000)       ‐              256,969     112,177     144,793     

TOTAL ALL FUNDS 8,431,672   8,018,632   413,040     4,050,837 4,115,008 (64,171)      (3,726,778)    (3,726,778)    ‐              654,057     176,846     477,211     

City of Colfax ‐ FY2018‐2019
Mid Year Budget Review ‐Fund Summary

Revision Date:  February 13, 2019

Revenues Expenses Capital Projects/Transfers In(Out)
Net Change in Fund Balance           
(Revenues ‐ Expenses +/‐ Transfers)

Item 7A
5 of 5



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE FEBRUARY 27, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager  

PREPARED BY: Wes Heathcock City Manager 
DATE: February 14, 2019 

SUBJECT: Commercial Cannabis Consulting Services  
 

 N/A  X FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: $61,616 FROM FUND:  100 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 06-2019 authorizing the City 
Manager to enter into a consultant services agreement with SCI Consulting Group to provide subject 
matter expertise and technical support, conduct compliance and financial audits, and on-going non-
compliant mitigation services for the City of Colfax for a three-year term up to $61,616. 

 

SUMMARY:   
At the February 13, 2019 City Council meeting, the City Council of the City of Colfax directed staff to open 
the commercial cannabis business retailer permit application process to one applicant. Council provided 
further direction the single applicant would be Golden State Patient Care for medicinal use only. In 
addition, Council directed staff obtain professional services from a different firm than HdL for administering 
the application process and on-going monitoring tasks.  
 
Staff solicited proposals from two firms which provide commercial cannabis business compliance services, 
Helix Environmental and SCI Consulting Group. Helix Environmental declined to provide a cost proposal. SCI 
Consulting Group provided a cost proposal that mirrors the existing fee structure with HdL with an 
additional option for on-going non-compliant mitigation services. The proposal breakdown is provided as 
an attachment to the staff report. Staff contacted SCI Consulting Group references to confirm their services 
were satisfactory and received positive feedback. 
 
Based on Council direction to pursue an alternative commercial cannabis consulting service and the 
appropriate fee structure in the SCI Consulting Group proposal, staff is recommending council approve a 
three-year agreement with SCI Consulting Group in an amount up to $61,616 funded through application 
fees, permit fees, and/or Measure C revenue. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
The fees for SCI Consulting Group scope of services shall be charged to the City based on the actual cost 
recovery fees collected by the City for the application process and compliance monitoring. On-going non-
compliant mitigation service will be recovered by Measure C revenues. The total contract amount is based 
on the following assumptions: 

• 2019 - one applicant completing Phase 1 of the application process, monitoring, and compliance 
costs $17,696 

Item 7B
1 of 22



2 

 

• 2020 one new applicant completing through Phase 4 of the application process, monitoring, and 
compliance costs. $21,960 

• 2021 one new applicant completing through Phase 4 of the application process, monitoring, and 
compliance costs. $21,960 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Resolution 06-2019 
2. SCI Consulting Group scope of services 
3. SCI Consulting Group Contract  

Item 7B
2 of 22



 

Resolution 06-2019 – SCI Consulting Firm Cannabis Page 1 
 
 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 06-2019 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONSULTANT 
SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH SCI CONSULTING GROUP TO PROVIDE SUBJECT 

MATTER EXPERTISE AND TECHNICAL SUPPORT, CONDUCT COMPLIANCE 
AND FINANCIAL AUDITS, AND ON-GOING NON-COMPLIANT MITIGATON 
SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF COLFAX FOR A THREE-YEAR TERM UP TO 

$61,616. 
 

WHEREAS, at the February 13, 2019 City Council meeting, the City of Colfax Council 
directed staff to open the commercial cannabis business retailer permit application to one 
applicant: Golden State Patient Care for a medicinal retailer permit; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council directed staff to obtain professional services from a 
different firm than HdL to administer the commercial cannabis business permit process 
and monitoring; and, 

 

WHEREAS, staff solicited a proposal from both Helix Environmental and SCI 
Consulting Group and received a favorable response from SCI Consulting Group; and, 

 

WHEREAS, based on Council direction, staff is recommending Council authorize the 
City Manager to enter into an agreement with SCI Consulting Group to provide 
commercial cannabis related services.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City Council of the City of Colfax, authorizes 
the City Manager to enter into a consultant services agreement in the form attached with 
SCI Consulting Group to provide subject matter expertise and technical support, conduct 
compliance and financial audits, and on-going non-compliant mitigation services for the 
City of Colfax for a three-year term up to $61,616. 

 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the 
Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 27th day of February 
2019 by the following vote of the Council: 
 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 
 
       ____________________________________ 
ATTEST:       Joe Fatula, Mayor 
 
____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

Item 7B
3 of 22



 

 

 

 
February 14, 2019 

Submitted via electronically 
wes.heathcock@colfax-ca.gov 
 
Wes Heathcock 
City Manager 
City of Colfax 
P. O. Box 702  
Colfax, CA 
 
 
Wes: 
 
SCIConsultingGroup (“SCI”) is pleased to submit this proposal for cannabis-related monitoring and 
compliance consulting services, including local cannabis tax verification auditing, to the City of Colfax 
(“City”).   SCI proposes to provide professional cannabis-related consulting services, as fully described in 
our Scope of Work: 
 
Application Review, Selection and Renewal 

1. Application Processing, Evaluation, Ranking and Selection: Phase 1 – Phase 4 
 
Monitoring and Compliance and Local Tax Verification Process 

2. Conduct Facility and Operations Inspections to Ensure Compliance   
3. Conduct Local Cannabis Tax Verification Audits  
4. OPTIONAL: Provide On-going Non-Compliant Businesses Mitigation Services  

  
It is important to realize the costs of Tasks 1 through 4 can and should be fully reimbursed (full cost 
recovery) to the City through regulatory fees.  It is recommended that the cost of optional Task 4 be 
reimbursed the through cannabis-related (Measure C) taxes. 
 
SCI has reviewed the City’s established regulatory fee’s for application and monitoring compliance and 
can provide the stipulated services within these set fee amounts. 
 
We understand the City is undertaking the implementation of safe, regulated and effective commercial 
cannabis business activities policies, and has the following structure:  
 

• Retail Medicinal Up to 2 Licenses 
• Retail Adult-Use Up to 2 Licenses 
• Cultivation Under consideration 
• Manufacturing Under consideration 
• Distribution Under consideration 
• Testing Under consideration 

 
We believe our expert knowledge of the cannabis industry, coupled with our broad experience 
providing municipalities with regulation, revenue and administration consulting services, will serve the 
City of Colfax well.   
 
 
 
 
 

Item 7B
4 of 22



 

Page 2 of 8 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

INTRODUCTION 
SCI provides cannabis-related advice and broad consulting services to a variety of public agencies in 
California including community support analysis, health and safety regulations, fee studies, taxation, 
implementation, application process development, application review and scoring, monitoring and 
compliance, business tax auditing, and community outreach.  
 
SCI maintains a network of relationships with government agencies and cannabis-related industry 
leaders, including attorneys, testing laboratories, cultivators, nursery owners, and retailers so we can 
provide expertise on all elements of the cannabis industry. SCI staff trains at the nation’s premier 
cannabis educational entity, Oaksterdam University in Oakland, and gathers lessons learned and best 
practices regarding cannabis operations throughout the United States.   
 
Our new business comes almost entirely from word-of-mouth referrals.  We encourage you to contact 
our clients who can attest to the level of service we provide, the long-term relationships we have 
developed, the unmatched accuracy of our approach, our successful experience with funding measures, 
and our industry-leading track record of winning ballot measures. 
 
We have worked extensively throughout Placer County, and currently provide, or have provided, 
assessment engineering and consulting services other than cannabis to numerous public agencies, 
including: 
 

 Auburn Area and Granite Bay Recreation and Park Districts 
 City of Roseville 
 Foresthill, Loomis, Newcastle, Penryn, and South Placer Fire Protection Districts 
 North Tahoe Public Utilities District 
 Placer Mosquito and Vector Control District 
 Placer County 
 

Please let us know if you would like to speak with any of our local clients directly and we will provide 
the contact information. 
 
SCOPE OF WORK   
 
1.) Application Processing, Evaluation, Ranking and Selection: Phase 1 – Phase 4 
The application review and selection process are typically the most onerous and difficult portions of a 
successful municipal cannabis implementation, especially pertaining to a competitive selection process 
for a finite number of licenses.  SCI currently provides these services for the Cities of Lompoc, San Carlos, 
Nevada City and West Hollywood. 
 
SCI understands that the City of Colfax has an established a four-phase process for application review, 
ranking, and selection and has established regulatory fees to reimburse the City for this review. SCI’s 
scope for this task includes supporting the selection process to identify the optimal cannabis applicants 
for the City, based upon the process and criteria established by the City.  
 

• Phase 1 – Preliminary Determination of Eligibility: 
SCI will thoroughly review all applications for completeness, verify live scan and background 
checks, and ensure zoning compliance. All incomplete applications will be disqualified and 
reported to the City.   

 
• Phase 2 – Initial Ranking: 

SCI will evaluate and rank all applications based on the specific criteria established for Phase 2 
by the City. A scoring spreadsheet will be provided to the City identifying the applicants which 
have passed Phase 2 with at least an 80% or higher scoring. 

Item 7B
5 of 22



 

Page 3 of 8 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
• Phase 3 – Second Ranking and Selection Panel Support: 

SCI will assist with the scheduling and coordination of interviews by the Selection Committee 
for the applicants who have passed Phase 2. In addition, SCI will prepare the Selection 
Committee for the interviews, develop interview questions and provide supporting 
documentation as needed. SCI will also participate in the facilitation of the interviews and if 
needed, will participate as a member of the Selection Committee.  
 

• Phase 4 – Final Recommendation and Presentation to Council: 
SCI will assist City staff with the preparation of draft resolutions, staff reports, notices and other 
materials and documents required for the City Council Meeting. In addition, SCI will attend the 
Council Meeting and assist City staff with responses to any questions. 

 
Deliverables: 

• Review, Rank, Document and Make Recommendations on Applications 
• Coordinate and Facilitate Selection Committee Interviews 
• Prepare City Staff for Council Presentation and Attend Council Meeting 
• Process and Review Application Renewals 

 
2.) Conduct Facility and Operations Inspections to Ensure Compliance 
SCI will provide comprehensive monitoring and compliance of facilities and operations, including 
documentation and reporting of the various licensee entities for the City.   
 
SCI will conduct onsite inspections and video monitoring of commercial cannabis activities and report 
to the City the results of compliance and monitoring relative to the level of Health and Safety regulations 
consistent with City’s local regulations and ordinances, staff-directed priorities and preferences, and 
State regulations. SCI monitoring and compliance efforts will satisfy the most rigorous requirements 
and at the same time, provide a successful platform for the cannabis business owner.   (It is understood 
that the desired and optimal services may evolve over time and SCI will modify services as directed by 
the City.)    
 
Among the elements and activities we will monitor are: 
 

• Product: Seed to sale tracking verification, inventory management, labeling verification, review 
testing protocols and testing facility compliance, review disposal processes, etc. 

 
• Human Resources: Review and confirm staff applications, time cards, DOJ verification, verify 

training programs and safety programs.  
 

• Facility Compliance: Provide video monitoring of all commercial cannabis businesses and 
conduct biannual onsite inspections. Verify facility’s operational compliance and signage, locks, 
alarm, security and safety processes; staff badging, records retention, waste disposal, packaging 
and labelling, etc. 

 
Deliverables: 

• Conduct Monitoring and compliance inspections 
• Conduct Video monitoring 
• Provide Reports detailing the findings of inspections 
• Provide enforcement support as needed 

 
  

Item 7B
6 of 22



 

Page 4 of 8 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

3.) Conduct Local Cannabis Tax Verification Audits 
SCI will provide comprehensive local cannabis tax verification audit services, including documentation 
and reporting, in order to ensure that the City receives full payment of all local cannabis-related taxes, 
including Measure C taxes.   
 
SCI will review of all required permits, test transaction activities, along with an inventory audit, point-
of-sale audit, software system audit, and review of register receipts as compared with observed activity.  
This task will consist of an initial desk audit of financial and tax records and a field audit investigating 
customer flow versus gross receipts, inventory flow etc.  The purpose of these audits is to prevent 
product diversion and under payment of local City taxes.     
 
Deliverables: 

• Provide reports detailing the findings of audits 
• Provide enforcement support as needed 

 
4.) OPTIONAL: Provide On-going Non-Compliant Businesses Mitigation Services 
The mitigation of non-compliant businesses is one of the more challenging aspects of any commercial 
cannabis implementation, and is essential to the long term success for any commercial cannabis 
compliance business environment.  Although, code compliance and law enforcement are the most 
critical elements of efforts to address non-compliant businesses, other mitigation services can be very 
effective, save costs and reduce community disruptions.    

SCI will work closely with the City including code compliance, law enforcement, legal, finance and 
others, to develop and implement a Non-Compliant Business Mitigation Policy.  Most likely the policy 
will include strategies and processes to communicate with and educate non-complaint businesses with 
the goal to affirmatively and safely shepherd them into compliance. 

Deliverables: 

• Develop and implement Non-Complaint Businesses Mitigation Policy 
• Establish, maintain and report on third-party anonymous tip-line (website, phone line, etc.) 
• Provide monthly non-compliant activity reports  
• Conduct individual and workshop support to Non-Compliant Businesses  

 

 PROJECT TEAM 
 
NEIL HALL, CANNABIS BUSINESS LEADER  
Neil Hall brings over 40 years of intensive interaction with public agencies and communities throughout 
California. He is a recognized leader in municipal cannabis policy in California. As Owner and President 
of the Fairfield Research Group from 1995 to 2014, Mr. Hall conducted over 150 focus groups, and 
attitude and satisfaction surveys for various communities, political candidates, and public agencies in 
Solano County. Mr. Hall earned a Bachelor of Arts degree in Business Management and M.B.A. from St. 
Mary’s College. 
 
KYLE TANKARD, SENIOR CONSULTANT 
Kyle Tankard contributes experience leading and assisting in local cannabis policy, as well as the 
formation of local revenue ballot measures and their annual administration, for both benefit 
assessments and special taxes. He currently administers a variety of assessments and taxes for vector, 
landscaping and lighting, levee and flood control and other special districts throughout California. His 
scope of work extends to include public opinion research, public outreach, data analysis and GIS 
mapping and database management. Mr. Tankard graduated from the University of California, Santa 
Cruz with a Bachelor of Arts in Environmental Studies with GIS emphasis. 
 

Item 7B
7 of 22



 

Page 5 of 8 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

CHRIS COULTER, SENIOR CONSULTANT 
Chris Coulter contributes experience in local cannabis policy, funding measure feasibility, data analysis, 
and financial analysis services for public, private and non-profit sector organizations to the SCI team. 
Mr. Coulter specializes in rate study analysis and Proposition 218 formation of benefit assessment 
districts, community facility districts and tax rate structures. In addition, he is experienced in spatial and 
regional analysis, opinion research, public outreach, demographic studies and ballot measure 
development. Mr. Coulter is a graduate of the University of California at Berkeley with a Bachelor of Art 
in English Literature. 
 
JOHN BLISS, M.ENG., P.E., PRESIDENT  
John Bliss, a professional engineer and President of SCI, specializes in special tax consulting, assessment 
engineering, special and general benefit analysis, crafting legally compliant, robust Engineer’s Reports, 
assessment administration, cost estimating and budgeting, database design and implementation, 
regulatory compliance, and revenue measure formations.  He has 15 years of experience in this field of 
expertise. Mr. Bliss graduated from Brown University with a Bachelor of Science Degree in Engineering, 
and holds a Master’s Degree in Civil Engineering from The University of California, Berkeley, where he 
was a Regent's Scholar.  He is a licensed professional Civil Engineer in the State of California and is a 
LEED accredited professional. 
 
EXPERIENCE AND REFERENCES  
 
Some of SCI’s most current and recent similar cannabis-related services were provided to:  
 
City of Coalinga 

Cannabis Services: Implementation Planning; Community Outreach and Stakeholder 
Engagement; Ordinance Review; Regulatory Fees; Monitoring and 
Compliance 

 Status:   Ongoing 
 Contact:   Sean Brewer, Community Development Director 
    sbrewer@coalinga.com; (559) 935-1533, ext. 124 
 
City of Merced 

Cannabis Services: Implementation Planning; Community Outreach and Stakeholder 
Engagement; Ordinance Development and Review; Application 
Process; Fees and Implementation; Regulatory Fees 

 Status:   Beginning phase 
 Contact:   Kim Espinoza, Planning Manager 
    espinosak@cityofmerced.org;  (209) 385-6858 
 
City of Santa Clara 

Cannabis Services: Implementation Planning; Community Outreach and Stakeholder 
Engagement; Ordinance Development and Review; Application 
Process; Fees and Implementation; Regulatory Fees 

 Status:   Ongoing 
 Contact:   Christine Jung, Management Analyst 
    CJung@SantaClaraCA.gov 408.615.2218 
 
City of Shasta Lake 

Cannabis Services: Implementation Planning; Community Outreach and Stakeholder 
Engagement; Ordinance Development and Review; Application 
Process and Fees; Regulatory Fees; Tax Measure; Monitoring and 
Compliance 

 Status:   Ongoing 
 Contact:   John Duckett, City Manager 
    jduckett@cityofshastalake.org; (530) 275-7427 

Item 7B
8 of 22

mailto:sbrewer@coalinga.com
mailto:espinosak@cityofmerced.org
mailto:jduckett@cityofshastalake.org


 

Page 6 of 8 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
City of West Hollywood 

Cannabis Services:           Application Process, Scoring Methodology, and Application Review 

                Status:                                 Ongoing 

                Contact:                              John Leonard, Community and Legislative Affairs Manager 

                                                            jleonard@weho.org;  (323) 848-6446 
 
Other SCI’s cannabis clients include: 

 
City of Avalon City of San Carlos 
City of Alameda City of Santa Ana 
City of Davis City of Vallejo 
City of Encinitas City of Woodlake 
City of Goleta City of Yreka 
City of La Mesa County of Alameda 
City of Lompoc County of San Luis Obispo 
City of Richmond County of Tuolumne 

 
OTHER INFORMATION 
 
EMPLOYMENT POLICIES 
SCI does not and shall not discriminate against any employee in the work place or against any applicant 
for such employment or against any other person because of race, religion, sex, color, national origin, 
handicap, or age or any other arbitrary basis.  SCI Consulting Group insures compliance with all civil 
rights laws and other related statutes. 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST STATEMENTS 
SCI has no known past, ongoing or potential conflicts of interest for working with the City, performing 
the Scope of Work or any other service for this Project.   
 
INSURANCE 
SCI carries professional Errors and Omissions insurance in the amount of $2 million per occurrence and 
$2 million aggregate.  SCI also carries general liability insurance in the amount of $2 million per 
occurrence and $4 million aggregate.   
 
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
If selected, SCI shall perform all services included in this proposal as an independent contractor. 
 
SCOPE OF WORK 
In the event the City elects to request optional, additive scope of work, SCI will work with the City to 
negotiate compensation for these additional tasks, and execute an Addendum to the agreement for 
these additional services. 
 
RESPONSIBILITIES OF CITY  
SCI will make every effort to minimize the workload on the City, but may need assistance, iteratively, 
with project overview and history, scheduling and budgeting. 

 
COORDINATION WITH CITY  
SCI will coordinate services with City staff through frequent and concise communications including 
face-to-face meetings, telephone calls and e-mail. 
 
 

Item 7B
9 of 22

mailto:jleonard@weho.org


 

Page 7 of 8 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 
In consideration for the work accomplished, as outlined in this proposal, SCI shall be compensated as 
detailed below: 
 
Application Processing, Selection and Renewal  
 
1.) Application Processing, Evaluation, Ranking and Selection: Phase 1 – Phase 4 
 
Per application, hourly at rates listed below not to exceed City’s established cannabis application 
fees (Phase 1-4) without permission: 
 

Phase 1 $3,696.00 
Phase 2 $1,466.00 
Phase 3 $1,633.00 
Phase 4 $1,165.00 

  
 (All costs associated with this task to be fully reimbursed to City through regulatory fees)   
 

Monitoring and Compliance and Local Tax Verification Process 
 
2.) Conduct Facility and Operations Inspections to Ensure Compliance   
 $1,500 per inspection 
 (Recommended:  3 inspections per commercial cannabis business per year) 
 (All costs associated with this task to be fully reimbursed to City through regulatory fees)   
 
3.) Conduct Local Cannabis Tax Verification Audits  
 $3,500 per audit 
 (Recommended:  1 audit per commercial cannabis business per year) 
 (All costs associated with this task to be fully reimbursed to City through regulatory fees)   
 
 
4.) OPTIONAL: Provide On-going Non-Compliant Mitigation Services  
 $6,000 per year 
  (All costs associated with this task can be fully reimbursed to City through cannabis fees/tax)   
   
SCI’s hourly rates as shown in the table below: 

 
SCI Staff      Hourly Rates 
John Bliss, President, Fee Engineer    $ 250 
Neil Hall, Senior Cannabis Consultant   $ 280 
Kyle Tankard, Cannabis Consultant    $ 185 
Chris Coulter, Cannabis Consultant    $ 185 
Support Staff      $   65 

 

Incidental costs incurred by SCI for the purchase of travel and other out-of-pocket expenses will be 
reimbursed at actual cost, with the total not to exceed $5,000 without prior authorization from the City.   
 
The scope of services includes two face-to-face staff planning meetings, in addition to the workshop-
style meeting and presentation included the Scope of Work. Any additional meetings, if required, shall 
be billed at the rate of $1,050 per person, per meeting. 
 

Item 7B
10 of 22



 

Page 8 of 8 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

We look forward to this opportunity in assisting the City of Colfax with this important project and stand 
ready to proceed. If you have any questions or require additional information, please do not hesitate to 
contact me.  I can be reached at (707) 430-4300 or via email at john.bliss@sci-cg.com. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 

John Bliss, P.E.  
President 
 
 
 
 

Item 7B
11 of 22



SCI Commercial Cannabis Management Page 1 

 

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into on this 28th day of February, 2019 by and 
between the City of Colfax, a municipal corporation of the State of California ("City") and  
SCI Consulting Group (“Consultant").  
 

RECITALS 
 
A. The City desires to retain Consultant to provide the Services set forth in detail in 

Exhibit A hereto (the "Services") subject to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. 

B. Consultant is duly licensed and sufficiently experienced to undertake and perform 
the Services in a skilled and workmanlike manner and desires to do so in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
  

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and conditions set 
forth in this Agreement, the City and Consultant agree as follows: 
 
Section 1. Services. 
Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Consultant shall furnish 
and perform all of the Services described in detail in Exhibit A hereto and incorporated 
herein by this reference (the "Services") to the satisfaction of the City.  Consultant shall not 
perform any work exceeding the scope of the Services described in Exhibit A without prior 
written authorization from the City.  
 
Section 2. Time of Completion. 
Consultant's schedule for performance of the Services is set forth in Exhibit A hereto which 
is incorporated herein by this reference.  Consultant shall commence performance of the 
Services promptly upon receipt of written notice from the City to proceed.  The contract 
term is for three (3) years with an option for a two (2) year extension commencing 
the day following the elected body approval.  During the performance of the Services, 
Consultant shall provide the City with written progress reports at least once each month 
and at such additional intervals as City may from time to time request.  
 
Section 3. Compensation. 
A. Except as may otherwise be provided in Exhibit A or elsewhere in this Agreement or 

its exhibits, Consultant shall invoice City once each month for the Services 
performed during the preceding month in an amount not to exceed $5000.  Such 
invoices shall itemize all charges in such detail as may reasonably be required by 
City in the usual course of City business but shall include at least: 

i. the date of performance of each of the Services,  
ii. identification of the person who performed the Services, 

iii. a detailed description of the Services performed on each date, 

Item 7B
12 of 22



SCI Commercial Cannabis Management Page 2 

 

iv. the hourly rate at which the Services on each date are charged, 
v. an itemization of all costs incurred and 

vi. the total charges for the Services for the month invoiced.  
As long as the Consultant performs the Services to the satisfaction of the City, the 
City shall pay the Consultant an all-inclusive compensation that shall not exceed the 
amount as detailed in Exhibit A except pursuant to an authorized written change 
order issued pursuant to Section 15 of this Agreement before the Services requiring 
additional compensation are performed. City shall pay Consultant no later than 
thirty (30) days after approval of the monthly invoice by City's staff. 

 
B. The Consultant's compensation for the Services shall be full compensation for all 

indirect and direct personnel, materials, supplies, equipment and services incurred 
by the Consultant and used in carrying out or completing the Services.  Payments 
shall be in accordance with the payment schedule established in Exhibit A or 
elsewhere in this Agreement or its exhibits. 

 
C. The City shall have the right to receive, upon request, documentation substantiating 

charges billed to the City pursuant to this Agreement.  The City shall have the right 
to perform an audit of the Consultant's relevant records pertaining to the charges. 

 
D. Any Services performed more than sixty (60) days prior to the date upon which they 

are invoiced to the City shall not be compensable.  
 
Section 4. Professional Ability; Standard of Quality. 
City has relied upon the professional training and ability of Consultant to perform the 
Services described in Exhibit A as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement. 
Consultant shall therefore provide properly skilled professional and technical personnel to 
perform all Services under this Agreement.  All Services performed by Consultant under 
this Agreement shall be in a skillful, workmanlike manner in accordance with applicable 
legal requirements and shall meet the standard of quality ordinarily to be expected of 
competent professionals in Consultant's field of expertise. 
 
Section 5. Indemnification. 
Consultant shall hold harmless and indemnify, including without limitation the cost to 
defend, the City and its officers, agents and employees from and against any and all claims, 
demands, damages, costs or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the 
negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of Consultant and/or its agents in the 
performance of the Services. This indemnity does not apply to liability for damages for 
death or bodily injury to persons, injury to property, or other loss, arising from the sole 
negligence, willful misconduct or material defects in design by the City or its agents, 
servants employees or independent contractors other than Consultant who are directly 
responsible to the City, or arising from the active negligence of the City officers, agents, 
employees or volunteers  

Item 7B
13 of 22



SCI Commercial Cannabis Management Page 3 

 

Section 6. Insurance.  
Without limiting Consultant's indemnification obligations provided for above, Consultant 
shall take out before beginning performance of the Services and maintain at all times 
during the life of this Agreement the following policies of insurance with insurers 
possessing a Best rating of not less than A.  Consultant shall not allow any subcontractor, 
professional or otherwise, to commence work on any subcontract until all insurance 
required of the Consultant has also been obtained by the subcontractor.  
 
A. Workers' Compensation Coverage. Statutory Workers' Compensation insurance and 

Employer's Liability Insurance to cover its employees. In the alternative, Consultant 
may rely on a self-insurance program to meet its legal requirements as long as the 
program of self-insurance complies fully with the provisions of the California Labor 
Code.  Consultant shall also require all subcontractors, if such are authorized by the 
City, to similarly provide Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the 
Labor Code of the State of California for all of the subcontractor's employees.  All 
Workers' Compensation policies shall be endorsed with the provision that the 
insurance shall not be suspended, voided, or cancelled until thirty (30) days prior 
written notice has been provided to City by the insurer.  The Workers' 
Compensation insurance shall also contain a provision whereby the insurance 
company agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the City and its elected or 
appointed officials, officers, agents, and employees for losses paid under the terms 
of such policy which arise from the Services performed by the insured for the City. 

 
B. General Liability Coverage. General liability insurance, including personal injury and 

property damage insurance for all activities of the Consultant and its 
subcontractors, if such are authorized by the City, arising out of or in connection 
with the Services.  The insurance shall be written on a comprehensive general 
liability form and include a broad form comprehensive general liability 
endorsement.  In the alternative, the City will accept, in satisfaction of these 
requirements, commercial general liability coverage which is equivalent to the 
comprehensive general liability form and a broad form comprehensive general 
liability endorsement.  The insurance shall be in an amount of not less than $1 
million combined single limit personal injury and property damage for each 
occurrence.  The insurance shall be occurrence based insurance.  General liability 
coverage written on a claims made basis shall not be acceptable absent prior 
written authorization from the City.  

 
C. Automobile Liability Coverage. Automobile liability insurance covering bodily injury 

and property damage for all activities of the Consultant arising out of or in 
connection with this Agreement, including coverage for owned, hired and non-
owned vehicles, in an amount of not less than $1 million combined single limit for 
each occurrence.  

 

Item 7B
14 of 22



SCI Commercial Cannabis Management Page 4 

 

D. Policy Endorsements. Each general liability and automobile liability insurance policy 
shall be endorsed with the following provisions:  

 
1. The City, and its elected or appointed officials, employees and agents shall be 

named as insureds or additional insureds with regard to damages and 
defenses of claims arising from activities performed by or on behalf of the 
Consultant. 
 

2. The insurance afforded by each policy shall apply separately to each insured 
who is seeking coverage or against whom a claim is made or a suit is brought, 
except with respect to the insurer's limits of liability. 

3. The insurance shall be primary insurance as respects the City and its elected 
or appointed officers, officials, employees and agents. Any other insurance 
maintained by the City or its elected or appointed officers, officials, 
employees, agents or volunteers shall be in excess of this insurance and shall 
not contribute with it. 
 

4. The insurance shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled, or reduced in 
coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has 
been provided to the City. 
 

5. Any failure to comply with the reporting requirements of any policy shall not 
affect coverage provided to the City, its elected or appointed officers, officials, 
employees, or agents.  

 
E. Professional Liability Coverage. If required by the City, Consultant shall also take out 

and maintain professional liability, errors and omissions insurance in an amount not 
less than $1 million.  The professional liability insurance policy shall be endorsed 
with a provision stating that it shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled, or reduced 
in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days written notice has been 
provided to the City.  

 
F. Insurance Certificates and Endorsements. Prior to commencing the Services under 

this Agreement, Consultant shall submit to the City documentation evidencing the 
required insurance signed by the insurance agent and the companies named. This 
documentation shall be on forms which are acceptable to the City and shall include 
all required endorsements and verify that coverage is actually in effect.  This 
Agreement shall not be effective until the required insurance forms and 
endorsements are submitted to and approved by the City.  Failure to provide these 
forms within the time period specified by City may result in the award of this 
Agreement to another Consultant should the City, in its sole discretion, decide to do 
so. Current certification of insurance shall be kept on file with the City at all times 
during the term of this Agreement.  

Item 7B
15 of 22



SCI Commercial Cannabis Management Page 5 

 

G. Deductible and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions 
must be declared to and approved by City. 

 
H. Termination of Insurance. If the City receives notification that Consultant's 

insurance will be suspended, voided, cancelled or reduced in coverage or in limits, 
and if the Consultant does not provide for either the reinstatement of that insurance 
or for the furnishing of alternate insurance containing all of the terms and 
provisions specified above prior to the termination of that insurance, City may 
either terminate this Agreement for that breach, or City may secure the required 
insurance to satisfy the conditions of this Agreement and deduct the cost thereof 
from compensation which would otherwise be due and payable to the Consultant 
for Services rendered under the terms of this Agreement. 

 
Section 7. Subcontracts.  
Consultant may not subcontract any portion of the Services without the written 
authorization of City.  If City consents to a subcontract, Consultant shall be fully responsible 
to the City and third parties for all acts or omissions of the subcontractor to which the 
Services or any portion thereof are subcontracted.  Nothing in this Agreement shall create 
any contractual relationship between City and any subcontractor, nor shall it create any 
obligation on the part of the City to pay or cause the payment of any monies due to any 
such subcontractor except as otherwise is required by law. 
 
Section 8. Assignment.  
Consultant shall not assign any right or obligation under this Agreement without the City's 
prior written consent.  Any attempted assignment of any right or obligation under this 
Agreement without the City's prior written consent shall be void.  
 
Section 9. Entire Agreement. 
This Agreement represents the entire understanding of City and Consultant as to those 
matters contained herein.  No prior oral or written understanding shall be of any force or 
effect with respect to those matters covered herein.  This Agreement may not be modified 
or altered except in writing signed by both parties.  
 
Section 10. Jurisdiction. 
This Agreement shall be administered and interpreted under the laws of the State of 
California.  Jurisdiction over any litigation arising from this Agreement shall be in the 
Superior Court of the State of California with venue in Placer County, California.  
 
Section 11. Suspension of Services. 
Upon written request by Consultant, City may suspend, in writing, all or any portion of the 
Services if unforeseen circumstances beyond the control of the City and Consultant make 
normal progress of the Services impossible, impractical or infeasible.  Upon written City 
approval to suspend performance of the Services, the time for completion of the Services 

Item 7B
16 of 22



SCI Commercial Cannabis Management Page 6 

 

shall be extended by the number of days performance of the Services is suspended.  
 
Section 12. Termination of Services. 
City may at any time, at its sole discretion, terminate all or any portion of the Services and 
this Agreement upon seven (7) days written notice to Consultant.  Upon receipt of notice of 
termination, Consultant shall stop performance of the Services at the stage directed by City.  
Consultant shall be entitled to payment within thirty (30) days for Services performed up 
to the date of receipt of the written notice of termination.  Consultant shall not be entitled 
to payment for any Services performed after the receipt of the notice of termination unless 
such payment is authorized in advance in writing by the City. 
 
Should Consultant fail to perform any of the obligations required of Consultant within the 
time and in the manner provided for under the terms of this Agreement, or should 
Consultant violate any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, City may terminate 
this Agreement by providing Consultant with seven (7) days written notice of such 
termination.  The Consultant shall be compensated for all Services performed prior to the 
date of receipt of the notice of termination.  However, the City may deduct from the 
compensation which may be owed to Consultant the amount of damage sustained or 
estimated by City resulting from Consultant's breach of this Agreement. 
 
Consultant's obligations pursuant to Sections 5 and 6 of this Agreement shall survive 
termination, and continue in effect for as long as necessary to fulfill the purposes of 
Sections 5 and 6. 
 
Section 13. Independent Contractor. 
Consultant shall in all respects be an independent contractor and not an agent or employee 
of City.  Consultant has and shall retain the right to exercise full control and supervision of 
the means and methods of performing the Services.  Consultant shall receive no premium 
or enhanced pay for Services normally understood as overtime; nor shall Consultant 
receive holiday pay, sick leave, administrative leave or pay for any other time not actually 
expended in the performance of the Services.  It is intended by the parties that Consultant 
shall not be eligible for benefits and shall receive no compensation from the City, except as 
expressly set forth in this Agreement.  Consultant shall submit completed W -9 and Report 
of Independent Contractor forms upon execution of this Agreement and prior to the 
payment of any compensation hereunder.  
 
Section 14. Ownership of Documents. 
Within thirty (30) days after the Consultant substantially completes performance of the 
Services, or within thirty (30) days after the termination of this Agreement, the Consultant 
shall deliver to the City all files, records, materials and documents drafted or prepared by 
Consultant's in the performance of the Services.  It is expressly understood and agreed that 
all such files, records, materials and documents are the property of the City and not the 
property of the Consultant.  All finished and unfinished reports, plans, studies, documents 

Item 7B
17 of 22



SCI Commercial Cannabis Management Page 7 

 

and other writings prepared by and for Consultant, its officers, employees and agents in the 
course of performing the Services shall become the sole property of the City upon payment 
to Consultant for the Services, and the City shall have the exclusive right to use such 
materials in its sole discretion without further compensation to Consultant or to any other 
party.  Consultant shall, at Consultant's expense, provide such reports, plans, studies, 
documents and writings to City or any party the City may designate, upon written request.  
Consultant may keep file copies of all documents prepared for City.  Use of any such 
documents by the City for projects that are not the subject of this Agreement or for 
purposes beyond the scope of the Services shall be at the City's sole risk without legal 
liability or expense to Consultant.  
 
Section 15. Changes and/or Extra Work. 
Only the City Council may authorize extra and/or changed Services, modification of the 
time of completion of the Services, or additional compensation for the tasks to be 
performed by Consultant.  Consultant expressly recognizes that other City personnel are 
without authorization to order extra and/or changed Services or to obligate the City to the 
payment of additional compensation.  The failure of Consultant to secure the prior written 
authorization for such extra and/or changed Services shall constitute a waiver of any and 
all right to adjustment in the contract price due to such unauthorized Services, and 
Consultant thereafter shall not be entitled to any compensation whatsoever for the 
performance of such extra or changed Services.  In the event Consultant and City agree that 
extra and/or changed Services are required, or that additional compensation shall be 
awarded to Consultant for performance of the Services under this Agreement, a 
supplemental agreement providing for such compensation shall be prepared and shall be 
executed by the Consultant and the necessary City officials before the extra and/or changed 
Services are provided. 
 
Section 16. Compliance with Federal, State and Local Laws. 
Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, 
ordinances, rules and regulations affecting the Services, including without limitation laws 
requiring licensing and prohibiting discrimination in employment because of race, creed, 
color, sex, age, marital status, physical or mental disability, national origin or other 
prohibited bases.  City shall not be responsible or liable for Consultant's failure to comply 
with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, rules or regulations.  
 
Section 17. Retention of Records. 
Consultant and any subconsultants authorized by the terms of this Agreement shall keep 
and maintain full and complete documentation and accounting records, employees' time 
sheets, and correspondence pertaining to the Services, and Consultant shall make such 
documents available for review and/or audit by City and City's representatives at all 
reasonable times during performance of the Services and for at least four (4) years after 
completion of the Services and/or termination of this Agreement.  
 

Item 7B
18 of 22



SCI Commercial Cannabis Management Page 8 

 

Section 18. Alternative Dispute Resolution 
A. Before resorting to mediation, arbitration or other legal process, the primary 

contacts of the parties shall meet and confer and attempt to amicably resolve any 
dispute arising from or relating to this Agreement subject to the following 
provisions.  Any party desiring to meet and confer shall so advise the other party 
pursuant to a written notice.  Within 15 days after provision of that written notice 
by the party desiring to meet and confer, the primary contacts for each party shall 
meet in person and attempt to amicably resolve their dispute.  Each primary contact, 
or the person acting in their absence with full authority to resolve the dispute, shall 
attend the meeting and shall be prepared to devote an entire day thereto.  If any 
dispute remains unresolved at the end of the meeting, any party to this Agreement 
shall have the right to invoke the mediation process provided for in the 
subparagraph B below.  

 
B. Subject to the provisions of subparagraph A, any dispute that remains unresolved 

after the meet and confer shall immediately be submitted to non-binding neutral 
mediation, before a mutually acceptable, neutral retired judge or justice at the 
Sacramento Office of the Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Service ("JAMS").  If 
within five days after the meet and confer the parties are unable to agree upon the 
selection of a neutral mediator, then the first available retired judge or justice at the 
Sacramento office of JAMS shall serve as the neutral mediator.  The parties agree to 
commit to at least one full day to the mediation process.  Additionally, to expedite 
the resolution of any dispute that is not resolved by mediation, the parties agree to 
each bring to the neutral mediation a list of at least five neutral arbitrators, 
including their resumes, whose availability for an arbitration hearing within 30 days 
after the mediation has been confirmed.  

 
C. If mediation is unsuccessful, before the mediation concludes, the parties shall 

mediate the selection of a neutral arbitrator to assist in the resolution of their 
dispute.  If the parties are unable to agree on an arbitrator, the parties agree to 
submit selection of an arbitrator to the mediator, whose decision shall be binding on 
the parties.  In that case, the mediator shall select a neutral arbitrator from the then 
active list of retired judges or justices at the Sacramento Office of the JAMS.  The 
arbitration shall be conducted pursuant to the provisions of the California 
Arbitration Act, sections 1280-1294.2 of the California Code of Civil Procedure. In 
such case, the provisions of Code of Civil Procedure Section 1283.05 and 1283.1 
shall apply and are hereby incorporated into this Agreement. 

 
D. This section 18 shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.  If 

there is no Sacramento office of JAMS, then the office of JAMS closest to the City shall 
be used instead of a Sacramento office. 
 

 

Item 7B
19 of 22



SCI Commercial Cannabis Management Page 9 

 

Section 19. Severability. 
The provisions of this Agreement are severable.  If any portion of this Agreement is held 
invalid by an arbitrator or by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect unless amended or modified by the mutual 
written consent of the parties.  
 
Section 20. Entire Agreement; Amendment.  
This Agreement, including all exhibits hereto, constitutes the complete and exclusive 
expression of the understanding and agreement between the parties with respect to the 
subject matter hereof.  All prior written and oral communications, including 
correspondence, drafts, memoranda, and representations, are superseded in total by this 
Agreement.  This Agreement may be amended or extended from time to time only by 
written agreement of the parties hereto. 
 
Section 21. Time of the Essence. 
Time is of the essence in the performance of the Services.  The Consultant will perform its 
Services with due and reasonable diligence consistent with sound professional practices 
and shall devote such time to the performance of the Services as may be necessary for their 
timely completion. 
 
Section 22. Written Notification. 
Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, any notice, demand, request, consent, 
approval or communications that either party desires or is required to give to the other 
party shall be in writing and either served personally or sent by first class mail, postage 
prepaid and addressed as follows. Either party may change its address by notifying the 
other party in writing of the change of address.  Notice shall be deemed communicated 
within two business days from the time of mailing if mailed within the State of California as 
provided in this Section.  
 
If to City:  City of Colfax  
   33 S. Main Street  
   Colfax, CA  95713  
 
If to Consultant:  SCI Consulting Group 
   4745 Mangels Boulevard   
   Fairfield, CA 94534 
 
Section 23. Execution. 
This Agreement may be executed in original counterparts, each of which shall constitute 
one and the same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties when at least one 
original counterpart is signed by both parties hereto. In proving this Agreement, it shall not 
be necessary to produce or account for more than one such counterpart. 
 

Item 7B
20 of 22



SCI Commercial Cannabis Management Page 10 

 

Section 24. Successors.  
This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the respective parties hereto 
except to the extent of any contrary provision in this Agreement. 
 
Section 25. Attorney's Fees.  
If any party to this Agreement commences legal proceedings to enforce any of its terms or 
to recover damages for its breach, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its 
reasonable attorney’s fees, costs and the expenses of expert witnesses, including any such 
fees costs and expenses incurred on appeal. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby have executed this Agreement on the day first 
above written:  
 
CITY  CONSULTANT  

 
Signature: 

 
Signature: 

 

 
Printed Name: 

Wes Heathcock 
Printed Name: 

 

 
Title: 

City Manager 
Title: 

 

 
Date: 

 
Date: 

 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
 City Attorney 

 
 

Item 7B
21 of 22



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK 

SCI Consulting Group (SCI) to provide cannabis-related monitoring and compliance consulting 

services, including local cannabis tax verification auditing, to the City of Colfax SCI proposes to 

provide professional cannabis-related consulting services, as fully described in our Scope of 

Work: 

Application Review, Selection and Renewal 

1. Application Processing, Evaluation, Ranking and Selection: Phase 1 – Phase 4 

Monitoring and Compliance and Local Tax Verification Process 

2. Conduct Facility and Operations Inspections to Ensure Compliance 

3. Conduct Local Cannabis Tax Verification Audits 

4. Provide On-going Non-Compliant Businesses Mitigation Services 

Scope of the services will continue through the 3-year term of the agreement expiring February 

28, 2023 unless terminated under the conditions of the agreement.  

Item 7B
22 of 22


	00A 190227 Agenda
	04A 190213 Minutes
	04B  Cash Summary January 2019
	2019-07 Staff Report Cash Summary Jan 2019
	190213 Cash Summary Data

	04C WWTP Truck
	2019 Staff Report Public Works Vehicle Purchase
	Resolution 04-2019 Purchase 1 Public Works_Wastewater Truck Winner Chevrolet
	2019 PW_WWTP Vehicle Purchase
	Old Republic Warranty

	04D Fire Station Roof
	2019 Fire Station 37 Roof SR
	Resolution 05-2019 Fire Station 37 Roof
	Roofing Quotes Fire 37

	07A Mid Year Budget Review
	Staff Report - Mid Year Review Feb 2019
	FY 2018-2019 Mid Year Review - Fund Summary - February 2019

	07B Commercial Cannabis Consulting Agreement
	190227 SR SCI Consulting Group Commercial Cannabis Contract Staff Report 2.27.2019..
	Resolution 06-2019 SCI Commercial Cannabis Management Contract Resolution 2.27.2019
	SCI City of Colfax Local Cannabis Application Review and Monitoring and Compliance Proposal Feb 2019
	Deliverables:
	Deliverables:
	Deliverables:
	Deliverables:

	SCI Commercial Cannabis Management Agreement 2.28.2019
	SCI Commercial Cannabis CONTRACT EXHIBIT A




